T Tomson Group Limited
Ml sesmaman
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Tomson Group smezesmsszsmas
Stock Code R85 : 258

201 /I Annual Report Sy




CONTENTS H &

Corporate Information

Group Profile

Management Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance Report

Profile of the Directors and Officers

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Other Connected Transactions

Schedule of Principal Properties

Five-Year Financial Summary

K AEER

pn

£ ) A A

B L Loy A

i E IR

o R AT BON B A

Rl

18 7 A% W R A

A MR &

A A T R

e RS IR LR

GeBlais

A5 B TR I RE

At B 72 52 5

B 3YE S

T AF S B A 2

Page
"Xk

22

31

36

54

56

57

58

60

63

65

159

160

167



Corporate Information

24 i ¥ R

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman)

Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)
Yeung Kam Hoi

Chuang Hsiao-Chen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar

Lee Chan Fai

Sean S ] Wang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lee Yuen Han

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
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Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12
15th Floor, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2848-1668
Facsimile: (852) 2845-0341

E-mail: mail_box@tomson.com.hk

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Tomson Group Limited ¥5FL4EMA KA v

H

BT

W (TR
TR (AR

T (AL

it

FESR 2L

B pAT R
BI6T
R

/J\ AJ

AR

7 i 1

ik T SHE 2

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

BB LER RN

s

FREE 11198
TG HL 5
1501-25%1507-12%

TE A (852) 2848-1668
e (852) 2845-0341

BT EFE © mail box@tomson.com.hk

B ¥ il

88 o BT & ST



SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2980-1333

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited
Bank of China Limited

First Sino Bank

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

SOLICITORS
David Lo & Partners
Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.

Deacons
Baker & McKenzie

SHARE LISTING

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 258

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Please write to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong, or send enquiries by fax at (852) 2845-0341

or email to ir@tomson.com.hk

Website: http://www.tomson.com.hk
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL OVERVIEW

In respect of the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2011, there was a consolidated profit after taxation
attributable to shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$15.21 million (2010: HK$860.02 million) and basic earnings
per share was 1.08 Hong Kong cents (2010: 62.71 Hong Kong
cents). If the changes in fair value of the investment properties
were disregarded, the Group’s profit before taxation for the year
ended 31st December, 2011 would amount to approximately
HK$613.07 million (2010: HK$2,218.06 million).

The decline in the profit for the year of 2011 was principally
attributable to a decrease in the Group’s revenue resulted from
a reduction in the amount of sale proceeds of properties in
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) that could
be recognized during the year under review. For the year ended
31st December, 2011, gross proceeds from operations and gross
profit of the Group amounted to approximately HK$2,020.05
million (2010: HK$3,718.74 million) and HK$1,396.68 million
(2010: HK$2,556.03 million) respectively.

The results of the Group for the year under review were further
adversely affected by an unrealized loss on changes in fair value
of the Group’s securities investments held for trading owing to
fluctuations in global financial market which also affected the
market of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
(“Hong Kong”), that should be recorded in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year under review
according to accounting standards adopted. A net loss in securities
investments held for trading of approximately HK$247.73 million
(2010: gain of approximately HK$158.43 million) was recorded in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year of
2011.

DIVIDEND

To expedite the dividend payment to the sharcholders of the
Company, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
declares payment of an interim dividend (instead of recommending
a final dividend) of 4 HK cents per share for the year ended 31st
December, 2011 (2010: final dividend of 6 HK cents per share) to
the sharcholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Friday, 18th May, 2012 (the “Record Date”).
The shareholders will be given an option to elect to receive shares
of the Company credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of
all or part of the interim dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting
listing of and permission to deal in the new shares of the Company
to be allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining the
number of new shares of the Company to be allotted under the
Scrip Dividend Scheme, the market value of a new share will be
calculated as the average of the closing prices per share of the
Company traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days up to and including the Record Date. A circular
giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme, together with a
form of election, will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for the
scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on Monday, 18th
June, 2012.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group’s major operations are based in the mainland of the
PRC and property development and investment are the Group’s
most significant operating segments. Since the property projects
in Tianjin and Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”)
of the PRC are in their development stage, property development
and investment in Shanghai remained the core business and the
principal source of profit of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

During the year of 2011, property development and trading
was the primary profit maker of the Group and a contribution
of approximately HK$915.84 million (2010: HK$2,014.60
million) was recorded while property investment was the second
important profit contributor to the Group and delivered a
profit of approximately HK$192.82 million (2010: HK$258.80
million) to the Group’s annual results. Leisure activities of the
Group ranked third in terms of profit contribution amongst
the operating segments of the Group during the year under
review and recorded a profit of approximately HK$2.25 million
(2010: loss of approximately HK$5.03 million). In addition, the
Group shared a profit of approximately HK$8.67 million (2010:
HK$12.78 million) from its hotel operation for 2011. The Group
also received dividends from its long-term equity investments of
approximately HK$3.84 million (2010: HK$24.95 million) during
the year of 2011.

On the other hand, securities trading activities of the Group
reported a loss of approximately HK$248.19 million for the year
under review (2010: profit of approximately HK$158.25 million).
The Group’s industrial operations recorded a loss of approximately
HK$4.13 million (2010: HK$2.52 million) in the Group’s annual
results for 2011. In addition, the Group’s investment in media
and entertainment business, being a new operating segment of the
Group in 2011, reported a loss of approximately HK$3.65 million
for the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Development and Investment

The Group’s property development and investment in Pudong of
Shanghai, the PRC, being the principal activities of the Group,
generated total revenue of approximately HK$1,767.76 million
and accounted for approximately 87.5% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2011.
In addition, a net gain on disposal and fair value changes of the
investment properties of the Group of approximately HK$104.75
million was recorded during the year under review. Tomson Riviera
and Tomson Riviera Garden were the prime revenue generators and

sources of profit of the Group in 2011.
Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is a notable residential development along the
riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right opposite the Bund. The
four residential towers provide a total residential gross floor area of
approximately 117,400 square meters. According to the business
strategy of the Group, Towers A and C are earmarked for sale while

leasing is concentrated in Towers B and D.

Satisfactory progress had been made in both sales and leases
during 2011. As at 31st December, 2011, approximately 57% of
the residential gross floor area of Towers A and C were sold and
approximately 58% of the residential gross floor area of Towers B

and D were leased.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, recognized revenue
from sale and leasing generated from the project amounted
to approximately HK$1,055.56 million and accounted for
approximately 52.2% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group. In addition, a gain on fair value change of Tomson Riviera
of approximately HK$96.27 million was recorded during the year
under review according to applicable accounting standards in
respect of investment properties. Besides, a deposit for sale of units
of the property of approximately HK$50.36 million was credited
at the year-end date of 2011 and is expected to be recognized in

the results of the Group in 2012.

The management will focus on leasing of the project in 2012 in

view of current market sentiment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Tomson Riviera Garden, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera Garden is a low-rise residential project of the
Group adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in Sanba
River District of Pudong and the Group holds a 70% interest
in the project. Construction of Phases 1 and 2 of the residential

development was completed in 2008 and 2010 respectively.

As at 31st December, 2011, only 4 units of detached houses of
Phase 2 with aggregate saleable gross floor area of approximately
1,759 square meters remained unsold. For the year of 2011, total
recognized revenue generated from both of the residential units
and a commercial property with ancillary car park of the project
amounted to approximately HK$617.05 million and accounted for
approximately 30.5% of the gross proceeds from operations of the

Group.

As at the end of the year under review, a sum of receipts in advance
in respect of sale of residential units of approximately HK$28.50
million was credited to the Group and is expected to be recognized

in the results of the Group for the year of 2012.

As reported in the interim report of the Company for 2011, the
Group entered into a conditional agreement on 5th August, 2011,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire the land use rights
of a plot of land with a site area of approximately 18,818.1 square
meters (the “Acquired Site”) in Sanba River District, Pudong
where Tomson Riviera Garden is located, at a consideration of
approximately RMB255.26 million, by returning another plot
of land with a site area of approximately 17,531.7 square meters
in the same district registered in the Group’s name and paying
a shortfall in consideration of approximately RMB17.45 million
in cash. The transactions constituted a connected transaction for
the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and were approved by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 14th September, 2011. The Acquired Site was delivered to
the Group and detailed development plans are being formulated.
It is intended to develop the Acquired Site into a low-density
residential development with a saleable gross floor area of
approximately 8,650 square meters as Phase 3 of Tomson Riviera
Garden. Taking account of the time for applying for government
approval and construction permit, construction works are expected
to commence around September 2012 and are scheduled for

completion in 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Land at Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District, Shanghai

As reported in the interim report of the Company for 2011,
the Company acquired through a wholly-owned subsidiary the
land use rights of a plot of land located at Jingiao-Zhangjiang
District, Pudong with a site area of approximately 300,700
square meters at a consideration of RMB1,829.25 million. Vacant
possession of over 60% of the site area of the land was delivered
in phases according to the agreement while the remaining area
will be delivered in two phases at the end of 2012 and 2013 as
scheduled. The Group intends to develop the land into a low-
density residential development in seven phases with a total gross
floor area of approximately 213,230 square meters, which will be
in harmony with the Group’s existing residential development
adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club. Owing to the
progress in detailed design of the development plan, construction
of the first phase of the land was delayed and is now expected to
commence in the third quarter of 2012 and is to be completed in
2014.

Miscellaneous Residential Developments in Shanghai

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases
around the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Pudong since 1996 and there are now less than 10 units available
for sale. No sale was concluded during the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

Xingguo Garden is the sole residential development of the Group
in Puxi. Apart from holding less than 10 car parking space for sale,
all the residential gross floor area of the project has already been

sold out.
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Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Shanghai

Rental income and management fee from the Group’s commercial
and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, comprising Tomson
Commercial Building, Tomson International Trade Building,
Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Park and the commercial podium
of Tomson Business Centre, provided a steady recurrent revenue
to the Group and accounted for approximately 4.8% of the gross

proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under review.

In January 2011, the Group acquired office premises situated at
72nd Floor of Shanghai World Financial Centre in Pudong at a
consideration of approximately RMB267.42 million. The Board
considers that the acquisition is an attractive opportunity for the
Group to secure long-term office space in a prestigious property
situated in a prime location in the financial district of Pudong
and which should offer good potential in enhancing shareholders’
value. The premises were classified as fixed assets of the Group
at the end of the year under review. To optimize the use of the
Group’s resources, the management has been exploring various

feasible plans of leasing the premises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Phase 2 of Jinwan Plaza, Tianjin

The Group formed two joint ventures with a state-owned
enterprise in June 2010 for development of phase 2 of Jinwan
Plaza which is situated in the central area of Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group holds a 75% equity interest in Tianjin Jinwan Real
Estate Development Co., Limited which plans to develop two
high-rise buildings of 25 and 57 stories respectively for residential
apartments, commerce and other commercial services. The total
gross floor area of these two buildings amounts to approximately
296,900 square meters with a gross floor area of 207,700 square
meters above ground. Construction works commenced on 31st
August, 2011 and the piling and foundation works were completed
in February 2012. It is scheduled to complete the entire project in
2015.

In addition, the Group holds a 51% equity interest in Tianjin
Jinwan Property Co., Limited which plans to develop a high-
rise building of 70 stories for commerce, hotel, offices, serviced
apartments and other commercial services with a gross floor area of
not more than 159,000 square meters above ground. Architectural
design of the building is at the final stage. Construction works are
scheduled for commencement in the third quarter of 2012 and it is

expected that the construction will take around 4 years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Penha Hill Project, Macau

In November 2010, the Group completed the subscription of
a 70% interest in a project company which is the owner and
developer of a plot of land with a site area of approximately
2,569 square meters located at Penha Hill, within a designated
World Heritage zone of Macau, the PRC. A luxury residential
condominium consisting of 4 towers of 7 to 12 stories of
residential units, a club house and car parks with an estimated
total gross floor area of approximately 23,600 square meters is
being developed. The site formation work was completed in 2011.
The piling and foundation works are in progress and targeted for
completion in April 2012. Tenders for superstructure works are
being awarded by the project company, with a tentative completion

date of 2013 for construction works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hospitality and Leisure Industry

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Shanghai

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club is situated in Pudong,
Shanghai, the PRC and generated revenue of approximately
HK$100.58 million, being approximately 5% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group, for the year ended 31st December,
2011. There was an increase in revenue during the year under
review which was mainly attributable to progress in both sale of
membership debentures and revenue from golfing activities. As a
whole, the operation reported an operating gain of approximately
HK$2.25 million for the year of 2011.
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InterContinental Shanghai Pudong, Shanghai

InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, situated in Lujiazui of
Pudong, Shanghai, the PRC, reported a slight drop in its average
occupancy rate to 71% in 2011, in the absence of an additional
inflow of tourists to Shanghai for the World Expo in 2010. In
addition, the earthquake in Japan and financial crisis of the Euro
zone caused a reduction of visitors to Shanghai. The newly opened
hotels in Shanghai further intensify competition in the hospitality
industry. Nevertheless, the Group, having a 50% interest in the
hotel, shared a profit of approximately HK$8.67 million from the
hotel operation for the year of 2011.
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Securities Trading

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong Kong
to diversify its business portfolio and maximize its return to cash
balance. Sale proceeds from disposal of and dividend receipt of
trading securities of the Group accounted for approximately 5%
of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the year
under review. Taking into account an unrealized loss on changes
in fair value of the trading securities, the Group recorded a net
loss in securities investments held for trading of approximately
HK$247.73 million for the year ended 31st December, 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Industrial Operations

Originally intended to complement its core business in the
property sector, the Group holds a 58% interest in an operation
manufacturing PVC pipes and fictings in Shanghai, the PRC.
The manufacturing operation accounted for approximately 2%
of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2011. Suffering from a slowdown in
property development projects in the mainland of the PRC and a
cancellation of overseas orders due to the civil war in Libya, the
operation recorded a decrease in turnover during the year under
review. In addition, the production cost increased owing to the rise
in raw materials price. As a result, the operation reported a loss of

approximately HK$4.13 million during the year of 2011.
Media and Entertainment Business

In anticipation of the potential increase in demand for leisure
activities from mainland visitors and the local population in Hong
Kong, the Group has decided to participate in the film distribution
business. Two films were released by the Group as distributor in
November 2011. However, no revenue was recognized for the
year under review as the amount of revenue receivable has not yet
been ascertained. The Group invested approximately HK$12.23
million in 2011 and had commitment to pay a further sum of
approximately HK$15.29 million as at 31st December, 2011 for
acquisition of licensed rights for film distribution. It is scheduled

to release around ten films in Hong Kong in 2012.
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TR ) T

In addition, the Group has taken part in investments in live
entertainment. Being a minority investor in such investments, the
revenue generated only accounted for 0.5% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2011. The Group will continue to participate in investments in

various live performances in 2012.

Owing to the cost of setting up a new business, this operating
segment incurred a loss of approximately HK$3.65 million for the
year of 2011.

Live Entertainment

i3 R i H

VAN ARG B IR 2 BB R H 2 B
M TE 2 S BB AE R D BBEE > 5%
HEANBAELEAERIERE —F——4F
T A=+ — B R E 2 R S R
0.5% ° A ZF — 4 AR RE2 1L
HB G REWE 2 E -

IR 2 57 B B 2 A - M S R &
— — 4 AR 43,650,000 7T Z 5 18

Tomson Group Limited #j FifE M4 KA v



Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group
holds a 9.8% interest in the issued capital of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in Hong Kong, and a 13.5%
interest in the registered capital of an associated company of RHL
established in Shanghai, the PRC. Both companies are principally
engaged in property development and investment in Shanghai, the
PRC, mainly in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong. Dividends
of approximately HK$3.84 million were received during the year
under review and an unrealized loss on changes in fair value of
the long-term securities investments of approximately HK$30.43
million was charged to the investment reserve of the Group as
at 31st December, 2011 according to the adopted accounting
standards.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

The Group’s capital expenditure and investments for the year
ended 31st December, 2011 were mainly funded by cash on hand

and bank borrowings.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$2,980.45 million.
During the year under review, the Group achieved a net cash
inflow of approximately HK$924.37 million from its financing
activities. After taking into account the net cash outflow of
approximately HK$123.31 million and HK$1,118.03 million
from its operation and investing activities respectively, the Group
recorded a net cash outflow of approximately HK$316.97 million
for the year under review (2010: cash inflow of approximately
HK$384.55 million). The net cash outflow was mainly attributable
to payment of tax, acquisition of office premises in Shanghai, the
PRC and placement in pledged bank deposits and was partly offset

by new bank borrowings raised during the year under review.

As at 31st December, 2011, excluding receipts in advance, of the
liabilities of the Group, about 36.52% were borrowings, about
34.83% were tax payables within one year from the year end,
about 20.40% were deferred tax liabilities while the balance was
trade and other payables and accruals. Details of trade payables
and deferred taxation are shown in Notes 29(c) and 33 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year under

review on page 130 and pages 138 to 139 respectively.
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The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2011 amounted
to approximately HK$3,345.58 million (2010: HK$2,053.07
million), equivalent to 30.85% (2010: 19.69%) of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company at the same date.
Additional borrowings raised in 2011 were mainly to finance the
property development projects in Tianjin and Macau, the PRC
and for working capital purpose. The Group did not employ any
financial instruments for financing and treasury management. All
of the borrowings were bank loans denominated in Renminbi or
Hong Kong Dollar under security and were subject to floating
interest rates. Of those borrowings, 33.59% were due for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period,
11.44% were repayable more than one year but not exceeding
two years from the end of the reporting period, 51.14% were due
for repayment more than two years but within five years from
the end of the reporting period, while the remainder was due for
repayment more than five years from the end of the reporting

period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had capital
commitments, contracted but not provided for, in relation to
expenditure on properties under development of approximately
HK$178.68 million (2010: HK$35.11 million). In respect
of the licensed rights for film distribution, there were capital
commitments of approximately HK$9.80 million (2010: Nil),
which was contracted but not provided for, and of approximately
HK$5.49 million (2010: Nil), which was authorized but not
contracted for. The Group anticipates funding those commitments
from its future operating revenue, bank borrowings and other

sources of finance where appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group recorded a current ratio of
2.49 times (2010: 2.88 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities
to equity attributable to the owners of the Company) of 85.33%
(2010: 76.65%). The slight decline in the current ratio was mainly
due to new bank borrowings raised during the year under review

and such new bank borrowings also pushed up the gearing ratio.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2011, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$9,772.09 million (2010:
HK$5,939.96 million) were pledged to banks to secure bank loans
of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi and the liabilities are well covered by the assets,
the management therefore expects that the change in value of
Renminbi will not have any adverse effect on the Group since
Renminbi has generally been perceived as having potential
to appreciate in value relative to the Hong Kong Dollar. All
of the other remaining assets and liabilities of the Group are
denominated in either Hong Kong Dollar or United States
Dollar; hence, the Group does not anticipate any material foreign

exchange exposure.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group had a contingent liability
of US$3 million (2010: US$3 million) in respect of a provision
of a guarantee to indemnify the management company of the
InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel a pro-rata share of the
fund paid for hotel renovation and system upgrading. The Board
is of the opinion that it would be unlikely for the Group to
suffer any material financial loss as a result of giving the aforesaid
guarantee. Details of the contingent liabilities are shown in Note
34 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

year under review on page 139.

PROSPECTS

Confronted by the control measures promulgated by the PRC
government on the real estate sector, there will be a great challenge
for the Group’s property trading business in 2012 and the
management desires to focus on the leasing market in the short
run. Tomson Riviera will be the principal source of profit for the
Group in 2012.

Though there is likely to be an unfavorable impact on market
sentiment of the property market arising from the possibility of
pronouncement of further measures by the PRC government, the
Group determines to keep property development and investment
in the PRC as its principal business activities and will carry out
its property development as planned. The year 2012 and the next
two years will be the major construction period of the Group’s
property projects and the management will devote its attention to
the development of the low-density residential property projects
in Pudong, Shanghai, as well as the composite property project in
Tianjin and the residential property project in Macau. In line with
the Group’s strategy, all these projects will be targeted at the mid-
to high-end of the market.
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The Group will also monitor market trends and developments
in the global real estate sector and will explore and evaluate
appropriate investment opportunities in the PRC or other major

international cities to capture any potential value appreciation.

On the other hand, seizing the opportunity of a rebound of the
stock market in Hong Kong, the Group has disposed of part of its
securities investments in the first quarter of 2012 to realize profit
and shall continue to maintain a cautious stance in management
of its securities portfolio in view of the volatility of the global and

Hong Kong financial markets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group engaged around 1,000
employees in total in its various offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai,
Tianjin and Taiwan excluding associates and jointly controlled
entities. Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of the
Group during the year under review amounted to approximately
HK$93.39 million. Remuneration and benefit packages are
generally structured with reference to both market terms and
practice, as well as individual responsibilities, performance
and qualifications. Discretionary bonus may be paid based on
individual contribution. In addition, the Company has established
a share option scheme pursuant to which directors and employees
of the Group are eligible to be granted options to subscribe for

shares in the capital of the Company.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
appreciation to a former independent non-executive Director of
the Company, Madam Tung Wai Yee for her contribution to the
Company during her tenure of office and to welcome the joining
of Mr Sean S ] Wang as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company during the year. The Board would also express
its gratitude to the management and all the staff members of the

Group for their dedication and loyalty to the Group over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 30th March, 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance standard
and procedures which emphasize quality management,

transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (to be renamed Corporate Governance Code with effect
from 1st April, 2012)(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year ended 31st December, 2011, except that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company. While this is
a deviation from the Code, dual role leadership provides the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) with a
strong and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
operation of the business. The Board is of the view that there
is an adequate balance of power. Responsibilities for the
Company’s daily business management are shared amongst
Madam Hsu and other members of the executive committee
of the Board. Besides, all major decisions are made in
consultation with members of the Board and appropriate
committees of the Board in accordance with the provisions of

the code on internal control of the Company; and

(b) none of the existing independent non-executive Directors of
the Company are appointed for a specific term, nevertheless,
they are subject to retirement and re-election at least once
every three years at annual general meetings of the Company

according to the Articles of Association of the Company.

THE BOARD

The Board is composed of cight members, now including five
executive Directors, Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman), Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles (Vice-Chairman), Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr Chuang
Hsiao-Chen, and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr
Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang.

Biographical details of the Directors and relevant relationships
among them together with their respective roles in the Board
and its committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and

Officers on pages 31 to 35.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
represent more than one third of the Board and one of them has
the appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an annual
written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all of the independent non-executive Directors

to be independent.

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The principal functions of the Board
are to formulate strategy, to consider and approve the Group’s
major corporate matters, to monitor and control significant
operational and financial matters of the Group. The independent
non-executive Directors have contributed valuable independent

views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman of the Board in setting the agenda for the
regular meetings and all Directors are consulted whether to include
matters in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying board papers are
given to all Directors in a timely manner before the appointed date
of each regular Board meeting. Drafts and final versions of minutes
of those regular Board meetings are circulated to the Directors for
comment and record respectively within a reasonable time after
each meeting. During the year of 2011, four regular meetings
were held by the Board and a Vice-Chairman of the Board had an
annual interchange with the independent non-executive Directors

of the Company without the other executive Directors present.

The Board has established an executive committee, an audit
committee and a remuneration committee (collectively the
“Committees”) with clear written terms of reference to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing
the Board’s responsibilities. The Board has reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering corporate strategy, annual
and interim results, changes of members of the Board and the
Committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
Committees have to report regularly to the Board on their
decisions and recommendations. The management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the Board

and the Committees.
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All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may affect the Group’s business, including relevant rules
and regulations. The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable
the Directors to seek independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist them to

discharge their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate

activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference in
June 2005. The Executive Committee comprises all the executive
Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Albert, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr
Chuang Hsiao-Chen, and Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of
the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee may convene
meetings as it considers necessary for reviewing and approving,
inter alia, any matters concerning the day-to-day management of
the business of the Company and any matters to be delegated to it

by the Board from time to time.
Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference
in June 2005. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for remuneration of its Directors and senior management
and to determine specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management of the Company while the
remuneration of any member of the Remuneration Commirttee
shall be determined by the Board. Upon resignation as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 18th April, 2011, Madam Tung Wai Yee ceased to act as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr Cheung Siu
Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang, being all
existing independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and
Mr Tong Albert, an executive Director of the Company, are now
members of the Remuneration Committee while Mr Cheung acts

as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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Two Remuneration Committee’s meetings were held during
2011 for considering remuneration packages of certain Directors
of the Company and annual review of the remuneration policy
and packages for all the Directors and senior management of the
Company. Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of
the Company for the year of 2011 are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 108 and 109.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
revised in March 2012 in view of the revision of the Code so
that the committee will make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the
Company from now.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has already been
set up by the Board with written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee is composed of all the existing independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu
Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar who
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications as
required under the Listing Rules. Madam Tung Wai Yee ceased
to act as a member of the Audit Committee upon her resignation
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 18th April, 2011.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to
review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the
overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
frameworks of the Group, and to oversee the relationship with the
Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2011, the Audit Committee held three meetings
for reviewing the interim and annual results as well as the financial
reporting matters of the Group, evaluating the internal control
and risk management system of the Group, and considering the
engagement and scope of services of the Auditor. In March 2012,
the Audit Committee held a meeting to review the annual financial
statements of the Group for 2011 and consider the re-appointment
of the Auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board to approve the
Group’s financial statements and consider the re-appointment
of the Auditor at annual general meetings of the Company. The
Audit Committee concluded that the internal control system of the
Group was effective in 2011 and was satisfied with the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes

and budget.
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of the individual Directors at the regular meetings
of the Board and the meetings of the Remuneration Committee

and Audit Committee held during the year ended 31st December,

2011 is set out below:—
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Number of meetings attended/held

Y Y% ZiPa-f 1 ]
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
#h HMEHE  EBZRHA

Executive Directors
Madam Hsu Feng

(Chairman of the Board and Managing Director)

Mr Tong Albert
(Vice-Chairman of the Board)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles
(Vice-Chairman of the Board)
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
(Chairman of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee)
Mr Lee Chan Fai
Mr Sean § ] Wang
(appointed on 18th April, 2011)

Madam Tung Wai Yee
(resigned on 18th April, 2011)
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, new
Directors could be elected by the Company or appointed by the
Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
in the case of filling a casual vacancy or until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company in the case of an addition

to the Board and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-

election.
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The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to recommended best practices of the Code and the
Board is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience
of its members), and identifying, selecting and considering any
appointment of its own members and considering nomination of
those retiring members for re-election by the shareholders in the
general meetings. The Board is also responsible for assessing the

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive
orientation package, including the latest information of the Group,
induction into his responsibilities and duties and other related

regulatory requirements.

During the year under review, the Board resolved at a meeting,
with the attendance of all the then Directors, to accept and
approve the changes of independent non-executive Directors and
members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.
In addition, all retiring Directors who offered for re-election were
nominated for re-election at the 2011 annual general meeting of

the Company.

At a regular meeting held in March 2012, the Board nominated
those Directors of the Company who will retire by rotation at the
2012 annual general meeting of the Company for re-election at

that general meeting.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of practice regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and relevant employees
(the “Code of Practice”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company and each of whom has confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Code of

Practice throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and effective
system of internal control is maintained within the Group in order
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
The Company has adopted a code on internal control applicable
to the Group in terms of financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions since 2005. The code on
internal control is reviewed regularly and modified pursuant to

operational requirements of the Group.

The Audit Committee has been authorized by the Board to review
the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
regularly and a meeting was held in 2011 for that purpose. The
Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that
the Group has complied with all the applicable provisions of the
Group’s code on internal control throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2011 and considers that the Group’s internal control

system was effective and adequate.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
are adequate, and their training programmes and budgets are

sufficient.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for each financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2011, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; have made judgements and estimates that were
prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial statements

on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form
an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial
statements and their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2011

is set out in the independent Auditor’s report on pages 54 and 55.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December,
2011 amounted to approximately HK$2,997,000 and HK$13,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided during the year were

taxation services.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. The Chairman of the Board and the
majority of the Directors (including the chairman and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee)
attended the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company
to answer questions from the sharcholders. In addition, at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 14th
September, 2011 for considering a connected transaction relating
to a swap of land in Pudong, Shanghai, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), representatives of the Board (including a
member of an independent committee of the Board formed for
that transaction) were available to answer questions relating to the

transaction.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders
of the Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have
timely and updated information of the Group, the Company
has set up its own website at http://www.tomson.com.hk
where the corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars, business development and other

information of the Company are posted.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribution to the advancement of
the well-being of the societies. During the year under review, the
Group has made charitable endowments for, inter alia, education
purpose, children welfare sponsorship and health promotion.
Donations were made to various worldwide and local charitable

organizations including World Vision Hong Kong and ORBIS.
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The Group started a charity programme in the PRC in 2010. It
not only provides financial assistance to 50 high school students
in Gansu Province of the PRC by sponsoring their three years’
tuition fees and living expenses but also raises the awareness of
their emotional well-being by the launch of a campaign whereby
staff members of the Group have volunteered to establish close and

continuous rapport with these students.

The Company has again participated in the “Heart to Heart
Project” organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
in 2011, to sponsor service projects proposed by volunteer groups
of those schools enrolled under the project so as to encourage
youth volunteers to serve the community and to play their part in

social development.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

W AT BN H g

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 61, has been a director of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) since January 1990. She
was appointed as Managing Director of the Company in December
2001 and the chairman of the executive committee of the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was
also elected as Chairman of the Board in December 2006. She
has over 10 years’ experience in film production, and in property
development and investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan.
She has been engaged in the property development and leisure
activities in the mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the

“PRC”) in recent years.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive
Directors of the Company. All of them are directors of E-Shares
Investments Limited (“E-Shares”). Both of Madam Hsu and Mr
Tong Albert are directors of King China Holdings Limited (“King
China”) and executive directors of a listed company in Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong”), Rivera
(Holdings) Limited (“RHL”). Madam Hsu is also the owner of
E-Shares and King China and a substantial shareholder of RHL.
E-Shares, King China and RHL are substantial shareholders of
the Company under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

SSEOT).

Besides, as at 30th March, 2012, pursuant to the SFO, Madam
Hsu together with her parties acting in concert, Mr Tong Albert
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, are interested and taken to be
interested in a total of 735,634,363 shares in the capital of the

Company (including share options).

Madam Hsu has been provided with a housing allowance
of HK$1,200,000 per annum in place of the provision of
accommodation by the Company with effect from 1st September,
2011, which was less than the cost involved in the past and was
determined by the remuneration committee of the Board with

reference to her responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

Mr Tong Albert, aged 29, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and a member
of the executive committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since June 2005. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of
the Board in December 2006. He has joined the Group and taken
up directorships of the subsidiaries of the Company since March
2001. He has participated in the Group’s business development,
corporate management, property trading and securities investment

for years.

Mr Tong Albert is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company. They all are directors of
E-Shares. Both of Mr Tong Albert and Madam Hsu are directors
of King China and executive directors of RHL. He is deemed to be
a substantial shareholder of RHL. E-Shares, King China and RHL
are substantial shareholders of the Company under the SFO.

Besides, as at 30th March, 2012, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong
Albert together with his parties acting in concert, Madam Hsu
Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, are interested and taken to
be interested in a total of 735,634,363 shares in the capital of the

Company (including share options).

Mr Tong Albert has been granted a housing allowance of
HK$660,000 per annum with effect from 1st September,
2011, which was approved by the Board with reference to his

responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 31, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since October 2008. He was also elected
as Vice-Chairman of the Board in December 2010. He has joined
the Group since December 2000 and has participated in property
trading and business management of the Shanghai office of the
Group. Mr Tong also acts as a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. He now principally engages in property

development and trading business in the mainland of the PRC.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman
of the Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the
elder brother of Mr Tong Albert, Vice-Chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company. They all are directors
of E-Shares. Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is deemed to be a
substantial shareholder of RHL. E-Shares and RHL are substantial
shareholders of the Company under the SFO.

o2 R AT RN B g

BYEE 295 A - FF—F+ A
BRERAAFRAZATEELA FFN
FEAAREREAERRENZATLZAR
GAFMEZ B G ZINE W R —FEFAN
FHAMERLAERRAER B A
TEAAEZ AR BAAREE L AR A
MHE AR ZEHR WL FR - HS AL
2 5B R ~ A A T WA N R
BES T

GFREERANTIZERR EFIFESR
MR L 2 7 K#EF R FF
THERYG T REEZH - =¥ HE-Shares
ZER - YGFREERRL LY AREZE
F N Z AT E F o BB N 2 2
Mo o iR 98 GEZR AW A]) > E-Shares
S HE R AN Rl 2 EERR -

WHN R FE—THE=ZA=ZTH B GE
I KA GEB) 2 @R % 1R e A
H—#5ir8 A+ (kML= &% T 5L
) BEA A B A AR A R AR A
735,634,363 % [ 0 i 2 (ELHG MG A ) o

hoF——4FE LA —H#® 5 TR
BT 5 B EMEF 660,000 #IC - 1L T #
8 2% 2 BT M B IRE T I T R E e

BYEEE 315 A - FF/\FE+ 7
ZERARFAZRTEERERRETZ
HOZEFZNE Wk —F—FF+ =
HEMRRELEERAEN -HA _FFF
T ARMEBAERE 2 EALE
I IR 2 W SE S MOERS A LSS -
SeAE AEA AR 2 KXW AR 2 #
o fBCBEE T 4% S R 2 ) S B R

GFREAEERAATZESRFF N HRE
FHAKA N L Lz FRESREEF
HUITEFEG TREAEZ MR =5
E-SharesZ % % o ¥ T 5% Jo A B4R 4 )1 o)
ZEEMOR MR GEH LB KE)
E-Shares S 1| 1A] J AR 08 7] 2 T BERE R o

Annual Report 2011 4FJE4EH

32



33

Profile of the Directors and Officers

o2 R AT RN B i

Besides, as at 30th March, 2012, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles, together with his parties acting in concert,
Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert, are interested and taken to
be interested in a total of 735,634,363 shares in the capital of the

Company (including share options).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles has been granted a housing allowance
of HK$660,000 per annum with effect from 1st September, 2011,
which was determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market
conditions. In addition, his annual salary for his services rendered
to the subsidiaries of the Company in Shanghai, the PRC has been
increased to RMB156,000.

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, aged 62, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since August 2010. He is the Chief
Deputy General Manager of the Group and has been appointed
as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company since
August 2010. Mr Yeung is an associate of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries, and a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute. He also holds a Master of Accountancy
degree of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr Yeung has
served as the company secretary of various listed companies in
Hong Kong since 1988, and during the period from 1998 to 2010,
as group company secretary of a listed conglomerate consisting
of five listed companies. He has over 20 years’ experience in an
extensive range of corporate exercises and regulatory compliance

matters of public listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, aged 64, has joined the Group since
May 1993 and has been appointed a Director of the Company
since April 1998. He now acts as an executive Director of the
Company and has been appointed a member of the executive
committee of the Board since June 2005. Mr Chuang also acts
as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is
a director and the general manager of Tomson Golf (Shanghai)
Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
is engaged in the operation of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club
and the development of Tomson Golf Villas in Pudong, Shanghai,
the PRC. He has extensive experience in sport and recreational
activities and has been engaged in management of the golf club
and development of golf villas in the mainland of the PRC in

recent years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 47, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September
2004. He was also appointed a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005 and then was appointed
as the chairman of this committee in April 2011. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and

is the sole proprietor of Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$112,800 to HK$117,600 with effect from Ist January, 2012,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company,
with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 49, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board
since December 2005. He graduated from The University of Hong
Kong, is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and
is qualified as a Registered Architect in Hong Kong and a First
Class Registered Architect in the mainland of the PRC. Mr Lee
has acted as a director of Marco Asia Limited and J&P Architects
Limited since 1990’s and has been appointed as a director of JSP
Architects Limited since 2008. He has extensive experience in

architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$112,800 to HK$117,600 with effect from Ist January, 2012,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company,
with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.
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Mr Sean S ] Wang, aged 48, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board
since April 2011. He studied economics at Peking University and
then went to the United States of America to achieve a bachelor
of science degree from Hamline University in 1986 and his
MBA degree from University of Minnesota in 1989. He is now
an executive director and the chief financial officer of China
Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group Holdings Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong. He is also a non-executive director of China
Advanced Construction Materials Group, Inc., a company listed
on NASDAQ. Mr Wang has in-depth and extensive experience
in corporate management and funds operation. He also has
many years of experience in financial operation and project
management at various multinational firms listed on the New
York Stock Exchange, NASDAQ and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He has held the positions of president and chief
operating officer of Hurray! Holding Limited, a company listed on
NASDAQ. During the period from June 2008 to May 2010, Mr
Wang acted as an executive director and the chief financial officer
of SOHO China Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He was
awarded “CFO of the Year in China” in 2009.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Wang has been increased from
HK$112,800 to HK$117,600 with effect from 1st January, 2012,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company,
with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 45, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998
and has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the Company
since August 2005.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 53, joined the Group in 1990. He was

appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in September
1999
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present its Report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2011 and the

independent Auditor’s report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year
were property development and investment, hospitality and
leisure activities, manufacturing of PVC pipes, securities trading,
investment holding as well as operation of and investment in

media and entertainment activities.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company while the principal activities and other
particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed
out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
150 to 156.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December,
2011 and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are
set out on pages 56 to 158. An analysis by operating segments is
set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
102 to 105.

To expedite the dividend payment to shareholders of the
Company, the Board has declared an interim dividend (instead of
recommending a final dividend) of 4 HK cents per share for the
year ended 31st December, 2011 (2010: nil interim dividend and
final dividend of 6 HK cents per share) to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 18th May, 2012 (the “Record Date”). The shareholders will
be given an option to elect to receive shares of HK$0.50 each in
the capital of the Company (the “Share(s)”) credited as fully paid
in lieu of cash in respect of all or part of the interim dividend (the
“Scrip Dividend Scheme”).
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The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting
listing of and permission to deal in the new Shares to be allotted
thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number of new
Shares to be allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the
market value of a new Share will be calculated as the average of
the closing prices per Share traded on the Stock Exchange for the
five consecutive trading days up to and including the Record Date.
A circular providing full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme,
together with a form of election, will be sent to the shareholders
of the Company in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share
certificates for the scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on
Monday, 18th June, 2012.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the

following periods:

(a) For the purpose of determining the shareholders who qualify
for the interim dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 16th May, 2012 to
Friday, 18th May, 2012, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected.
In order to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), Tricor Secretaries
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 15th May, 2012 for registration; and

(b) The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled
to be held on Friday, Ist June, 2012 (the “2012 AGM”).
For the purpose of determining the shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the 2012 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 30th May, 2012 to Friday, 1st June, 2012, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be effected. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2012 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p-m. on Tuesday, 29th May, 2012 for registration.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed to approximately 40.32% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations with the largest customer accounting
for approximately 12.13% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations while approximately 50.72% of the Group’s purchases
were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the
largest supplier accounting for approximately 34.60% of the

Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% interest in the Company’s issued share capital) have any

interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group donated
approximately HK$1,840,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group added
fixed assets amounting to approximately HK$344,040,000 (2010:
HK$12,304,000) while disposed of and wrote off fixed assets
with an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$1,536,000
(2010: HK$101,140,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown
in Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements on

pages 114 to 116.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either
under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out

on pages 160 to 165.
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BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31st December, 2011 are

set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements on page

137.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of

its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

Interest expenses of approximately HK$1,190,000 (2010:
HK$2,199,000) attributable to properties under development were
capitalized by the Group during the year.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December,
2011 amounted to approximately HK$227,186,000 (2010:
HK$118,546,000).

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the
Group as at 31st December, 2011 amounting to approximately
HK$5,697,810,000 are to be carried forward. Other movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are shown
in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 40
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 62 and

page 148 respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any of its

subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company issued and allotted
an aggregate of 7,550,000 new Shares at an exercise price of
HK$2.155 per Share upon exercises of share options by Directors
and employees of the Company under the share option scheme of
the Company. The Company also issued and allotted 17,230,311
new Shares at a price of HK$2.848 per Share to the shareholders
who elected to receive Shares credited as fully paid in lieu of cash
for the final dividend of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2010.
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All those new Shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the

then existing issued Shares.

As at 31st December, 2011, 1,416,359,807 Shares were in issue.
Deetails of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 30

to the consolidated financial statements on pages 132 and 133.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for

the preceding five financial years is set out on page 167.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and

those who were in office during the year under review are:
Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
Mr Lee Chan Fai
Mr Sean S ] Wang

(appointed on 18th April, 2011)
Madam Tung Wai Yee

(resigned on 18th April, 2011)

A profile of the existing Directors of the Company is shown on

pages 31 to 35.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements on pages 108 and 109.
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All Directors of the Company, including the non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. Article 116 of the Articles of
Association of the Company provides that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors of the Company for the time
being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the nearest number to but not less than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last election and shall be eligible for
re-election. In this connection, Mr Lee Chan Fai, Madam Hsu
Feng and Mr Tong Albert will retire by rotation at the 2012 AGM.

Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is subject
to the shareholders’ approval at the 2012 AGM and details of
those Directors will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to
be despatched to the shareholders together with the notice of the

annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-
election at the 2012 AGM have an unexpired service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2011, the interests and short positions of the

Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying

shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Furtures

Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein

(including interests and short positions which they were taken to

have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(I) The Company:
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g 2 IR R A B IR AT

W oE——F+ T HA=+—H > AAFKE
A A B AT AR R B (% GE R R
HEEG) BEXVIRZ EHRRE) ZH 1E
TE 5 S AH B 0y Hp B 2 R IR R 5 I
B 535206 2 B R A R% W 1 ir
B Fe M A (BRI GBI B 06D
E34ARHE L B A 2 B IR ) > B
MR GBS Bl AR ([ CEhmH
By 1) 2 328 F e AR A 7 K W 28 i 2 i 4
PR -

M ARAH:

Shares of HK$0.50 each fF WAL 0509 T2 I By
Number of Shares
I
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors WIS IN £ F B M AR JCAb
Madam Hsu Feng (4) fr Mut @ 125,655,496 (B) Nil 259,336,078 (C) 235,040,000 (E)
Nilf# (D) 109,428,789 (F)
1,300,000 (G)
Mr Tong Albert (4) BT REE @) 48,555,690 (B) Nilfi Nilft (D) 669,204,673 (H)
13,000,000 (1)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (4) ¥ ¥ % %&£ (4) 34,873,099 (B) Nil & Nil# (D) 682,887,264 (H)
13,000,000 (2)
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen HERE LA 2,000,000 (B) NilfiE Nil 4 Nil 4

(IT) The Company’s associated corporations:

(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited (“China Boom”)

Shares of US$1 each

(IT) 7 2% 5) Z 4186 2 1
(1) BEEERARAT (THHE])
8B 18158 2 Bt B

Number of shares of China Boom

REEZ R YH
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director FFEH 1IN &) % B % 2 ) B4R JU A B 2%
Madam Hsu Feng (/) Mt ) 716,800 Nil 563,200 NilE
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Notes:

(B)

©

(2) Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited

(“Tomson Entertainment”)

Shares of NTD10 each

T BB A7 B2 ]
([Z R4 ])

@

5 JB i LW £3 W 100T Z B 4y

Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment

REBEREZBHUH
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director [ 3% il A B % B i i L J A 22
Madam Hsu Feng (K) & Mxt K 1,350,000 Nilf& 1,125,000 Nil &
i
Madam Hsu Feng is the mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong (A) WLt hGTREE G TFREEEZE
Chi Kar Charles. As at 31st December, 2011, they, being considered BWoR—FR——HF+_H=+—H 1K &
to be persons acting in concert, were interested in an aggregate of o5 BB RG)  05% (WR B — BT 8 A
730,760,363 Shares (of which 703,460,363 Shares were issued and +) B A A 36730,760,363 8 % 03 HE &5 (4 A
27,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share options), ANF AT EATRA Z51.59%H 5 ) - H
representing 51.59% interests in the total issued share capital of the 703,460,363 CL A 8847 > 127,300,000 A 17
Company, pursuant to the SFO. If all the outstanding share options i B PO R W] BRAT o A AN 2% ) I RO
under the share option scheme of the Company were fully exercised, WTE T B A R AT 2 R A A AT A
they would be interested in 50.61% of the enlarged issued share capital WENRARN A Z WRC BT RA DA
of the Company. 50.61%HE 4
These Shares were held by the relevant Directors of the Company in (B) WERGHALAFAREEULEGREA A
their capacities as beneficial owners. Z B
The 259,336,078 Shares were beneficially held by the following (C)  #%%259,336,078 M Bt fn i N A AR AT 2 F 5

substantial sharcholders of the Company:

B SRH 4 A

Number of Shares held

Name of companies 2 %A Bi kA ey 2 B H
King China Holdings Limited i He 42 [ AT PR 151,122,909
E-Shares Investments Limited E-Shares Investments Limited 108,213,169

259,336,078

As Madam Hsu Feng held the entire interests of King China Holdings
Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited, she was deemed to be

interested in these Shares pursuant to the SFO.

Tomson Group Limited ¥5FL4EMA KA v

H A A A A e 2 AR A B A
E-Shares Investments LimitedZ 2= #BHE 25 > 5
Mg GBS B R B) » Brl 2 B A 7% 5%
JB 2 W 4



(E)

(F)

(H)
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As at 31st December, 2011, the following companies, being wholly- (D) ME-FE——FtTZA=1+—H>THAHE (¥
owned subsidiaries of Rivera (Holdings) Limited ((“RHL”), a listed B— RN E LT 2 AR )4 B A R
company in Hong Kong of the PRC), beneficially held an aggregate of AT ) 2GR EA ) A 63t
170,700,000 Shares: 170,700,000 i JB £33

Number of Shares held
Name of companies 2w 5 Pi 47 ey 2 B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited WA AR A 13,361,530
Shine Trip Limited Fiy JE A R W 157,338,470

170,700,000
Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert were directors of RHL. In MR L A B3 - [R] 56 A 2 5 )1 B 5 o
addition, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Ao PR GBI R B ARE) > Lt %
Charles were or were deemed to be substantial shareholders of RHL TR e A B T SR Ry R 2 I 2 £
pursuant to the SFO. LR
Madam Hsu Feng has entered into agreements with Mr Tong Albert and (E) ot & LY T e A KB TR AT
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, to sell to each of them 117,520,000 Shares, Ttk n A 23 Il 117,520,000 By
in an aggregate of 235,040,000 Shares, which have been pledged by Mr (5 3£235,040,000% A3 ) » 1M1 5 T 7] 56 A= I
Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in favour of Madam Hsu TR EAERI TR RS TR LIERE
as a security for their performance of the duties under the aforesaid AT Al sk TH T 2 BAT KW 2
agreements. Hence Madam Hsu Feng had a security interest in these fio BRI » ARGE GEZR BRI - fhiid &
issued Shares pursuant to the SFO. TRAZSECEITIRMZ — R B -
Subject to the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, Madam Hsu (F) Fe o b B BE (B) Tl 2 Wk > DL R G
Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were considered to I BB > Wi L L W TR e i
be persons acting in concert pursuant to the SFO. In this connection, TREEWHEL —BATE A Lo Ht R =
as at 31st December, 2011, Madam Hsu Feng was taken to be interested F——FE+HA=+—H il LA
in a total of 109,428,789 Shares held by Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong WA 1R ek ol TR e R A 2 At
Chi Kar Charles, amongst which, 26,000,000 Shares were issuable upon 109,428,789 Bt B 3 HE 25 - HiF26,000,000 8% it
exercises of share options. AT {68 i JBe M IR T T AT
Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an option (G) HM LD HEREAANZ SN FAARAF
under the share option scheme of the Company which entitled her to Z SR RE ST B TR 2 OB S SR A
subscribe for 1,300,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per NEE_Z—FFET—H T ZH I BAE
Share during a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015. Z S TH] N 22 B B3 3. 6449 T 2 R A R
1,300,000/5 B 3

Subject to the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, Madam Hsu (H) R EaloBbaF (B) ral 2 1 LA e iR 98 GB35

Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were considered to

be persons acting in concert pursuant to the SFO.

In this connection, as at 31st December, 2011, Mr Tong Albert was not
only interested in the 117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu
Feng, but taken to be interested in a total of 551,684,673 Shares held
by Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, amongst which,

14,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share options.

LI E Ay > AR et~ % IR e B 1
FRAEWHA —BEE AL

Hit > = ——E+ A =Z+—H B TH
Je e REHEAT B AR A 4 i 2 117,520,000
e M0 25 L WA B oR AR e+
TR EEFA Z A 35551,684,673 % it 13 HE
fi » HiH114,300,000 8 7 47 (87 1 ARRE IFF m] 7> %
1o
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On the other hand, as at 31st December, 2011, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles was not only interested in the 117,520,000 Shares transferred
from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to be interested in a total of
565,367,264 Shares held by Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert,
amongst which, 14,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share

options.

I) Each of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his
capacity as a beneficial owner an option under the share option scheme
of the Company which entitled him to subscribe for 13,000,000 Shares
at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per Share during a period of 8 years
ending on 12th November, 2015.

(J)  Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a personal
interest in 716,800 shares (being 56%) in the capital of China Boom
while the Company held the balance of interest of 563,200 shares (being
44%) in the capital of China Boom through its wholly-owned subsidiary.
Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise of more than one-
third of voting power at general meetings of the Company, hence, she
was also taken to be interested in those shares held by the Company.
In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed to be interested
in 1,280,000 shares (being 100%) in the issued share capital of China

Boom pursuant to the SFO.

(K)  Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a personal
interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital of Tomson
Entertainment while the Company held an interest in 1,125,000 shares
(being 45%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment through its wholly-
owned subsidiary. Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise
of more than one-third of voting power at general meetings of the
Company, hence, she was also taken to be interested in those shares held
by the Company. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed
to be interested in 2,475,000 shares (being 99%) in the issued share

capital of Tomson Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and
their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2011, which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein (including interests or short positions
which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
29th May, 2002. Subject to earlier termination by the Company
in general meeting or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and
effective till 28th May, 2012. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

Apart from the Scheme, at no time during the year nor at the
end of the year ended 31st December, 2011 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.
Major terms of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to selected persons for their contribution to the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”).

The participants of the Scheme include:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity; or

(ii) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iii) any adviser, consultant, customer and supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity

who have contributed or will contribute to the Group; or

(iv) any sharcholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.

As at the date of this Report, the maximum number of Shares
available for issue under options granted or to be granted under
the Scheme is 55,674,911, representing approximately 3.94% of

the Company’s existing issued share capital.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant or
grantee (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”).
If any further grant of options to a participant or grantee would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant in excess
of the Individual Limit, such further grant must be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company with
such participant or grantee and his or her associates abstaining

from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years

commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised under the Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the

Company by way of a consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option granted
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute

discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less than

the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer

of the option, which must be a business day;

(ii)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;

and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.
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Movements during the year T A JBE P W Tt B 2 5 Bl

The movements of the options during the year ended 31st R E —F——F T+ =+ —HILEE
December, 2011 and the carrying rights to subscribe for Shares N> 5% et B JE N 2 W B RE 2 g Bl K R I A
under the Scheme are shown as follows: T HEFFERE 40T

Number of Shares subject to the options

Vi JBC B U 2 e B B H
Cancelled/
Balance Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance
Exercise price Exercise as at during during during as at
Name of grantees Date of grant per Share period 1.1.2011 the year the year the year  31.12.2011
20114 #20114F
o e JBe £ LHIH  MEEEWR RAEEN RAEERN  12H31H
RBAH gilHM e AT Z itk Bl iy d [P Z it
(HKS)
(#C)
Category 1: Directors
H—E
Madam Hsu Feng 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 - 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000
& Lt 12.11.2015
Mr Tong Albert 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 (a) - -
Vi I etk 23.7.2011
13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 - 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000
12.11.2015
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 — 13,000,000 - - — 13,000,000
iRk 12.11.2015
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 (b) - -
HERR A S 23.7.2011
Total for Directors
2 31,300,000 - 4,000,000 - 27,300,000
Category 2: Employees
SN R R
Employees 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 - 6,050,000 - 3,550,000 () 2,500,000 -
= 23.7.2011
Total for Employees 6,050,000 = 3,550,000 2,500,000 -
=P ¥
Total for all categories
UEEVIE L 37,350,000 - 7,550,000 2,500,000 27,300,000
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Save as disclosed above, no other options under the Scheme were
outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year ended 31st
December, 2011 nor were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed at

any time during the year.

Notes:

(a)  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the

date on which the option was exercised was HK$3.4270.

(b)  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the

dates on which the option was exercised was HK$3.0503.

(c)  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the

dates on which the options were exercised was HK$3.1367.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
of the Company, is a director and substantial shareholder of RHL.
Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, both being Vice-
Chairmen of the Board and executive Directors of the Company,
are deemed to be substantial shareholders of RHL pursuant to the
SFO. In addition, Mr Tong Albert is a director of RHL.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai, the PRC, in particular in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong, through its subsidiaries and associated company, while
property development and investment, with particular focus
on Pudong in Shanghai and Tianjin of the PRC, is one of the
principal businesses of the Group, so the business of RHL in
the property sector in Shanghai (the “Excluded Business”) may

potentially compete with the Group)s business.
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In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are considered to have interests in a business
which may compete or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than that business
where the Directors have been appointed/were appointed as
directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules. Nevertheless, RHL is a listed
company in Hong Kong of the PRC and the Excluded Business
is managed by its independent management and administration.
Besides, the Board is independent of the board of directors of RHL
and the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
will assist in monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group is
therefore capable of carrying on its business independently of, and

at arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,
2011.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a highly-
effective staff management and incentive structure. Remuneration
and benefit packages are generally structured by reference to
market terms, individual responsibilities, performance and
qualifications. The emoluments of the executive Directors of the
Company are decided by the remuneration committee of the Board
(the “Committee”) or the full Board under the recommendation
of the Committee (as the case may be) and the fee of the non-
executive Directors is fixed by the Board under the authorization
of the sharcholders of the Company and the recommendation of
the Commirttee. In addition, the Company has adopted a share
option scheme pursuant to which the directors and employees of
the Group are eligible to be granted options to subscribe for Shares

as a long-term incentive.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong
Kong of the PRC. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme
effective from December 2000 and is funded by contributions
from employer and employees according to the provisions of
the MPF Ordinance. If the employer makes any voluntary
contributions on behalf of the employees under the scheme,
forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to reduce the

amount of future voluntary contributions payable by the employer.

On the other hand, the employees of the Group in the mainland
of the PRC are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
governments. The employers and the employees are obliged to
make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under

rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the said schemes and charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$6,834,000 (2010:
HK$5,476,000) and no contributions were forfeited.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2011, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly
or indirectly, in 5% or more of the total issued share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and those interests were

required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial shareholders

F BB 4 1
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Number of Shares held
(proportion to the

total issued share capital
of the Company)

P % 41 Jbe 4y i H

(AR FAZHCBEITBAZE )

Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”) J1[ ] 8 B A BR A =) ([ ]) (a)

King China Holdings Limited $f %% £ [# 4 [ A 7] (b)
E-Shares Investments Limited (b)

Notes:

(a) Amongst those Shares disclosed, 157,338,470 Shares were beneficially
held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Superwell Development Limited in which RHL held the entire interest.
Therefore, Shine Trip Limited, Superwell Development Limited and
RHL were interested or were taken to be interested in these Shares

pursuant to the SFO.

Details of the interest taken to be held by RHL under the SFO are set
out in Note (D) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and

Short Positions in Securities” in this Report.

(b)  King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited were
the beneficial owners of those Shares respectively. They were beneficially
and wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng in her capacity as a beneficial
owner. By virtue of the SFO, their interests in the Shares therefore
constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in the capital of the Company as
disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short

Positions in Securities” in this Report.

(b)

170,700,000 (12.05%)
151,122,909 (10.66%)
108,213,169 (7.64%)
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Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not
aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company)
who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in
the total issued share capital and the underlying shares of the
Company and those interests or short positions were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at
31st December, 2011.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of
this Report, the Company maintains a sufficient public float as

prescribed by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2011 have been audited by Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who were the Auditor of the Company for the

past three financial years.
They will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Tong Albert

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30th March, 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 158, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st December, 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December, 2011 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
30th March, 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #Z% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FEE

2011 2010
S SNMVEREY WY
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
Bt 7 T# F itk or
Gross proceeds from operations A8 2 25 HEER 8 &9 2,020,048 3,718,737
Revenue A 8 1,919,605 3,533,110
Cost of sales S8 AR (522,926) (977,084)
Gross profit EF) 1,396,679 2,556,026
Net (loss) gain in investments held FRERE (k) ki iFHE
for trading (247,726) 158,433
Other income A e A 10 53,167 81,888
Other gains and losses HoAth iz 25 M5 18 11 19,015 (3,854)
Selling expenses 88 (250,489) (343,088)
Administrative expenses T8 % H (200,968) (180,757)
Net gain on disposal and fair value BEWELE XA EHES 17
changes of investment properties IF 7 AR 2 WA T AR 104,746 184,167
Finance costs il & 2 ) 12 (159,680) (56,070)
714,744 2,396,745
Share of results of associates JREAL B 7 N 2 2B 4R (1,384) 1,451
Share of results of jointly controlled FEAG &8 2 ¥
entities 4,192 11,917
Profit before taxation B Bt 11 Y6 A 13 717,552 2,410,113
Taxation BiIH 14 (638,137) (1,435,583)
Profit for the year 4 T8 i ] 79,415 974,530
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE A 4F B i A A0
Owners of the Company EN/NEE ETESEEDN 15,210 860,018
Non-controlling interests T 18 T JR SR A 64,205 114,512
79,415 974,530
Earnings per share (HK cents) B A (AL 16
— Basic — AR 1.08 62.71
— Diluted — B AR 1.08 62.57
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Bk 7 2 T W A A%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =—HIL4FE

2011 2010
—“F—-—4 —“FTFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x T
Profit for the year 4 i ) 79,415 974,530
Other comprehensive income (expenses) It 2w W 2% (B S%)
Exchange difference arising from translation of: #54 IFf 2 A= 2 [ 58, 22 %
— jointly controlled entities — 55 47,653 16,281
— other foreign operations — HAth 1 S 35 446,175 337,204
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of A B R N T ) RE
available-for-sale investments EEZ (EHR) i (30,425) 5,113
Share of other comprehensive JREAG W 88 o ) 22 H At 4 T
(expense) income of associates (BAS2) Ui 45 (105) 639
Reclassification adjustment: R R O R
— Release from reserve on acquisition — R EFEYERER
upon sale of properties held for sale W 4t A4 3,365 10,084
Other comprehensive income for the year A JiE HC At 4 TH AR 466,663 369,321
Total comprehensive income for the year A JBE 2 i WK A BB 546,078 1,343,851
Total comprehensive income attributable to: M4 4 i WX 4 S8 B Jn F -
Owners of the Company EN/NEE SRS RN 435,665 1,214,844
Non-controlling interests 12 I B AR HE 4 110,413 129,007
546,078 1,343,851
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31st December, 2011 R —&F——&HE+—"H=+—H

2011 2010
e & R R
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Wt it T# T T
Non-Current Assets It By &
Fixed assets [t 7E
— Investment properties —REY ¥ 17 6,230,313 5,853,656
— Property, plant and equipment — W)~ MR Bk i 18 691,030 363,294
Lease premium for land + A A 19 69,642 72,489
Film distribution rights W B AT HE 20 5,741 -
Prepayment for film distribution rights B BT RETE AT 3K 21 6,488 -
Goodwill 7 24 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets I AE B JE A 33 3,526 3,054
Interests in associates TN N T 2 RES 25 33,952 34,210
Interests in jointly controlled entities NEBESEZ RS 26 1,063,199 1,023,246
Available-for-sale investments Al R 27 107,320 137,745
Pledged bank deposits AT ERAT A7 3K 29(e) 54,624 47,583
8,299,123 7,568,565
Current Assets it I
Lease premium for land + 3 AH S R 19 7,032 6,720
Properties under development oy 2 22 4,156,741 2,412,965
Deposits paid for land use rights T HE 2 A RT 23 872,724 2,157,192
Properties held for sale FpEY 2,811,320 3,147,792
Trade and other receivables and JRE S o B K~ H A B Ui 29(a)
prepayments R 23K B T A #IH 268,314 249,169
Investments held for trading FrERE 28 429,897 498,103
Inventories 78 29(b) 27,034 26,217
Prepaid income tax TE AT 5B 497,247 201,138
Pledged bank deposits FEAP SR AT A7 3K 29(e) 814,628 -
Cash and bank balances 4 W ERAT 45 5 29(d) 2,980,449 3,201,637
12,865,386 11,900,933
Current Liabilities it ) £ 4%
Trade and other payables and accruals JEAT B T WK~ HoAth A 29(c)
MR K TH 4R # T 755,016 718,867
Receipts in advance TH i 31 JE 92,262 669,612
Tax payables JRE A B IH 3,190,783 2,607,325
Borrowings & 32 1,123,794 129,717
5,161,855 4,125,521
Net Current Assets R B A 7,703,531 7,775,412
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities B8 R RO B £ A 16,002,654 15,343,977

Annual Report 2011 4EJE4EH 58



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31st December, 2011 R —&F——&HE+—"H=+—H

2011 2010
S SNVIREY WY
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 7t T# F it oC
Capital and Reserves A B g
Share capital A 30 708,180 695,790
Share premium and reserves JI& 73 ¥ A I fit A 10,135,425 9,730,648
Equity attributable to owners of A B HE 45 R A N AL HE £
the Company 10,843,605 10,426,438
Non-controlling interests IE 2 B e HOBE £ 1,068,517 1,050,674
Total Equity BB 2R 11,912,122 11,477,112
Non-Current Liabilities E U RER
Borrowings R 32 2,221,789 1,923,349
Deferred tax liabilities IR S ol JH AR 33 1,868,743 1,943,516
4,090,532 3,866,865
16,002,654 15,343,977

OB EON B FZA=Z1H
£8 B IR A I PR RE T B o

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30th March,
2012.

Hsu Feng Tong Albert
 H At
Chairman Vice-Chairman
Ev JEY 3
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Notes:

(@)

(b)

(e)

()

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

The special reserves of the Group arose from the difference between
the aggregate amount of the then share capital and share premium
account of Tomson Investment Limited, the former holding company
of the Group, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued

pursuant to a scheme of arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares. The

amounts represent the nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from retained
earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the relevant
government authorities. This reserve is distributable only for the future

development or expansion of that company where concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from retained
earnings by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) subsidiaries
of the Company. In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to
increase capital subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company

Law of the PRC.

Reserve on acquisition arose on acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiary, being the excess of the fair value over the carrying value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities attributable
to the additional interests of the subsidiary acquired on the date of
acquisition. When the identifiable assets are revalued or disposed of,
the relevant amount of the reserve on acquisition is released to the

consolidated income statement.

Of the retained earnings of HK$5,697,810,000 (2010:
HK$5,781,407,000), HK$3,566,000 (2010: HK$11,266,000) are
attributable to jointly controlled entities of the Group and accumulated
losses of HK$8,882,000 (2010: HK$7,498,000) are attributable to

associates of the Group.

Wit

(@)

(b)

(d)

(e)

)

AR [ 22 I Ak 5 A S T S T 2 HE M A D
B ELBCE AT IR R IR IR KR vk 1 IR
BB N A A — JL LA AR B — T o s
BB AT I < T 2 260

A TR 1 b AR R T O S AR o 2% < A T T
P19 8 073 5% T A (6 9

A SE R A T o A7 B BN B R A T B
RT3 1 R B 3 A o A 2 20 Uk RRT R
BB EMZARMFERRRRESIE -

T4 T L0 fof AR R AR SR T o B N R SR
(Teb i ] ) g 2 ) A PR B i M) 412 488 9 O o
R P AR A RE) > AL R
W0 T 2 ) 2R T A% i ) 9 1096 28 5
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11 FE AR 5090 o 125 5 2 B fek A T g > A
R EALE WAER PRI
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AR B %5 F115,697,810,000 8 G (& —FA4F ¢
5,781,407,000%5 70 ) > A< 4 B & A ZE
15 R B8 i 1 453,566,000 I ( & — R AR
11,266,000 JG) - 1M 8,882,000%5 J& ( — % —
FAE 17,498,000% TC ) B A B2 [ B 2w B A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

i Bl B R

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =—HIL4FE

2011 2010
R R
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T# F T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERH
Profit before taxation W i il i 717,552 2,410,113
Adjustments for: FELATR R
Share of results of associates JRE AL B 2 N W] 2 S A 1,384 (1,451)
Share of results of jointly controlled JEAG G B A ¥EZ ¥R
entities (4,192) (11,917)
Release from reserve on acquisition upon 8 £ 8 ¥ £ RF g 5
sales of properties held for sale WA i £t A4 3,365 10,084
Interest on bank loans SRAT A B 159,680 56,070
Depreciation of property, W M E B sk i 8
plant and equipment 31,772 24,992
Amortisation of lease premium for land + b FH B2 T 4 A 7,099 6,716
(Recovery)/allowance for bad and SR (lml) A
doubtful debts, net of bad debts L 11 BRI AR S, i (]
written off/recovery (229) 1,365
Net loss on disposal/write off of e R E R
property, plant and equipment B EicRE il 287 11,698
Net gain on disposal and fair value BREWELE XA EHES
changes of investment properties BE A 2 IR A R A (104,746) (184,167)
Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value FFEREANTHEEGHEAZ
changes of investments held for trading KEHERE (ki) 253,418 (141,991)
Interest income FLE A (40,908) (48,520)
Dividends from available-for-sale Al E R E 2 S A
investments (3,835) (24,951)
Operating cash flows before movements & i & < 5 B {ij 2 588
in working capital BEHA 1,020,647 2,108,041
Decrease in properties held for sale FrEWEW D 428,489 834,696
(Increase) decrease in trade and other TSR 2 B K~ HoAth RE R 3R
receivables and prepayments Fe A SRE (3G ) b (2,258) 43,815
Increase in deposits paid for land use b A5 A R AN RT 4 B A B
rights and related stamp duty E[I1E B 18 Tin (99,275) (90,129)
Increase in investments held for trading 1+ B % & 14 Jin (185,212) (275,725)
Decrease (increase) in inventories & (Bn) 406 (2,340)
Increase in trade and other payables JEE AT T B~ HAth At
and accruals W K S AR R 14 14,527 6,980
Decrease in receipts in advance TE W i D (601,075) (981,206)
Addition in properties under B Y SR
development (162,577) (2,222,369)
Cash from (used in) operations MEERELS (TH) 284 413,672 (578,237)
Taxes paid 2 A B K (536,987) (358,083)
NET CASH USED IN iR ]
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (123,315) (936,320)

Tomson Group Limited ¥5FL4EMH BA v




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEBERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

2011 2010
ot S S
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Jigza T#7x T#T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BB
Interest received 2 i FE 40,405 48,547
Dividend from a jointly controlled entity W HU &2 1> FE M E U A 11,892 651
Dividends from available-for-sale CECk's - P I=N N
investments 3,835 24,951
Proceeds on disposal of property, B RS R
plant and equipment B 15 sk IH 80 1,081
Purchase of property, plant and ) 3~ R B R
equipment (344,040) (7,364)
Repayment of lease premium for land BETHHEEA - 175,640
Addition in investment properties NEREYE = (4,940)
Proceeds on disposal of investment G BT s BOE
properties 1,169 88,361
Net cash outflow on acquisition of assets 25 8 W5 i — [] B J&§ 2 ] Wi 1% 42
through acquisition of a subsidiary B E 2 B I - (209,968)
Advance to an associate At T — BB N F 2 A (1,250) =
Placement in pledged bank deposits Bk © I SRAT A7 K (817,893) (47,583)
Investment in a jointly controlled entity A& & > E KR E - (835,769)
Prepayment for film distribution rights 5% Fr #5847 HE T Ao 3K (6,488) -
Purchase of film distribution rights W R AT RE (5,741) i
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING 8t % 3% ) i i 2 BL & 4%
ACTIVITIES (1,118,031) (766,393)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 26 35 )
Interest paid 2 AT S (161,291) (55,571)
Cash dividend paid BT B4 i B (34,768) (44,259)
Dividend paid to non-controlling C A IR #2212 IS
interest (92,570) (224,391)
Repayment of bank borrowings 1838 SRAT 5 3Kk (135,769) (106,132)
New bank loans raised o R AT B 1,332,500 1,816,038
Repurchase of shares [a] I8 S 17 — (9,939)
Capital contribution from T2 e e SR 2 1
non-controlling interest - 711,519
Proceeds from exercise of share options AT i B HE 2 I 45 3K I8 16,270 =
NET CASH FROM FINANCING R85 ) A 2 B4
ACTIVITIES 924,372 2,087,265
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN BREeRRAEFMEH (WD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 34 m i3 18 (316,974) 384,552
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W—H—HZBER
AT 1ST JANUARY Bl &SN H 3,201,637 2,728,657
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE b ¥ 3¢ 3 % i 5 2 38 %%
RATE CHANGES 95,786 88,428
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+T-H=Z1T—HZBHE&X
AT 31ST DECEMBER, BleSMEH
represented by cash and bank balances B Bl 4 K R 1T 4% iy 2,980,449 3,201,637
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GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year were property development and
investment, hospitality and leisure activities, manufacturing
of PVC pipes, securities trading, investment holding as well

as investment in media and entertainment activities.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA:

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010
HKAS 24 (as revised

in 2009)
Amendments to HKAS 32

Related Party Disclosures
Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Requirement
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments

Tomson Group Limited %} B4 B A B2 v

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W05 W B ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =—HIL4FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak o W05 0 o Bk ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs had no
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKERS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKEFRS 11

HKERS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets'

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities’

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9

and Transition Disclosures®
Financial Instruments’®
Consolidated Financial Statements®
Joint Arrangements?
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®
Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’

Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying
Assets’

Employee Benefits?
Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures®

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

of a Surface Mine?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y B R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2015
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2014

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009)” introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010)” adds

requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently measured
at ecither amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, the Group may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held-for-trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Tomson Group Limited %} B4 B A B2 v
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after Ist January, 2015, with earlier application permitted.
The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1st January, 2015 and
that the application of HKFRS 9 might have impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s available-for-
sale investments but no impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect

until a detailed review has been completed.

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). Key

requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK (SIC) — Int 12
“Consolidated — Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee,
and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has

been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKEFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”
and HK (SIC)-Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities-Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers”. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31,
there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled

operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required
to be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or

proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS

12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2013. Earlier application is
permitted provided that all of these five standards are applied
early at the same time. The Directors anticipate that these
five standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1st
January, 2013. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has

been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKEFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad, it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all

assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual period beginning on or
after Ist January, 2013 with earlier application permitted.
The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1st January, 2013 and that the
application of the new standard may result in more extensive

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
consolidated income statement and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to HKAS
1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
consolidated income statement, and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to consolidated income statement
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on

the same basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y B R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group
for annual period beginning on 1st January, 2013. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income will be
modified accordingly when the amendments are applied in

the future accounting periods.

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets” mainly deal with the measurement
of deferred tax for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
“Investment property”. Based on the amendments, for the
purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of the investment
properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances. If
the presumption is not rebutted, the Directors anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKAS 12 may
have a significant impact on deferred tax recognised for
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of

the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 S8 e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair

values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary prior to
Ist January, 2010 , the excess/shortfall of the consideration
paid over/below the fair values of the underlying assets
and liabilities attributable to the additional interests in a
subsidiary acquired is recognised as goodwill or discount on
acquisition. Excess of fair values over the carrying amounts
of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the
additional interests is debited to reserve on acquisition. On
subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or revaluation or disposal
of the underlying assets of that subsidiary, the attributable
reserve on acquisition is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal or gain or loss on

revaluation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Conrinued)

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity

therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to 1st
January, 2010

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s
proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities recognised.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date is
before Ist January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at

the date of acquisition.

From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry

goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.
Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional loses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payment on behalf of that associate.

The associate’s financial statements used for the application
of equity method of accounting are prepared using uniform
accounting policies with the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of the
associate to bring their accounting policies into line with

those used in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. When a
group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest

in the relevant associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Interests in jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly

controlled entity.

The jointly controlled entity’s financial statements used for
the application of equity method of accounting are prepared
using uniform accounting policies with the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of a jointly controlled entity to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used in the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. When a
group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated income

statement.
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised and

derecognised on a trade date basis.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Conrinued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are investments held for trading. The Group classified
such financial assets as held for trading investments as they
has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and bank balances, amounts
due from associates and jointly controlled entities) are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
that Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the borrower being probable to enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the loans and
receivables are impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the loans and receivables are
reduced by the impairment loss directly with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in the consolidated income statement. When trade and
other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the

consolidated income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the loans and receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
cither designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, held-for-maturity investments

and loans and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment reserve, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in investment

reserve is reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse in the consolidated income statement in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in investment reserve.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting

period.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in

subsequent periods.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Conrinued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument
is recognised and deducted directly in share capital for
par value and in share premium for total amount paid
in excess of par value. The same amount recognised in
share capital will be transferred from retained earnings to
capital redemption reserve. No gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses other than goodwill and
financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the consolidated income

statement for the period in which they arise.

Transfer from investment properties to properties held for
sale will be made when there is a change of use, evidenced
by commencement of development with a view to sale. The
fair value of the related property will be transferred as the
cost of the properties held for sale, any difference between
the carrying value and the fair value of the related property
at the date of transfer is recognised in consolidated income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Transfer from investment property to property, plant and
equipment will be made when there is a change in use as
evidenced by commencement of owner occupation. The fair
value of that item will be transferred as the cost of property,
plant and equipment subject to appropriate depreciation.
For property interest held under operating lease previously
classified as an investment property and accounted for as if
it were a finance lease under the fair value model, the Group
shall continue to account for the lease as a finance lease,
even if subsequent event changes the nature of the property

interest so that it is no longer classified as investment

property.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits is expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the

item is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction work-in-progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. When the construction is
completed and the asset is available for use, the related cost
is transferred to appropriate category of property, plant and

equipment and depreciated in accordance with the following

policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Concinued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets
other than construction work-in-progress less their estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives by equal
annual instalments at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and

2% to 4% or over the terms of

buildings the relevant lease
Plant and equipment 4% to 13%
Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 40%

equipment and motor

vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost and
estimated net realisable value. Properties under development
which are intended for sale in the ordinary course of business

upon completion are classified as current assets.

Properties transferred from investment properties to
properties held for sale are stated at deemed cost on date of

transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Y B R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated

income statement in the year in which they are incurred.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discount.

When properties are developed for sale, income is recognised
only when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Payments received from purchasers
prior to this stage are recorded as receipts in advance under

current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —F——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Revenue from sales of investments held for trading is

recognised on a trade date basis.

Property management fee income is recognised on an
appropriate basis over the relevant period in which the

services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Revenue from media and entertainment events organised by
co-investors is recognised, when the events are completed

and the revenue is agreed with co-investors.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in the consolidated income statement for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (foreign
currencies translation reserves). Such exchange differences
are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —F——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Film distribution rights

Film distribution rights are rights acquired or licensed from

outsiders for exhibition of films.

Film distribution rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Film distribution
rights are amortised on the proportion of actual income
earned during the year to the total estimated income over
their economic beneficial period. Additional amortisation/
impairment loss is made if future estimated projected
revenues are adversely different from the previous estimation.
Estimated projected revenues are reviewed at regular

intervals.

An impairment loss is made if there has been a change in the
estimate used to determine the recoverable amount and the

carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve. If a director or an employee
chooses to exercise options, the related share option reserve
is transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the related share option reserve is transferred

directly to retained earnings.
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —F——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the terms of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease terms on a straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leaschold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of

the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for

. . « . »
as an operating lease is presented as “lease premium for land
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease terms on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment

properties under the fair value model.
Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y B B M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date
of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
(Note 24). If the expectation on assumption differs from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying

amount of goodwill whenever such estimates are changed.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 32 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs

as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing

debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —F——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

Categories of financial instruments

7.

ST H

a)

ST H 2B

2011 2010
M
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T#x T T
Financial assets LE5 8 g7
Fair value through profit or loss A EFI ARG Z
investments held for trading FERE 429,897 498,103
Loans and receivables (including B B R R K (LA
cash and cash equivalents) BERBESFMHEER) 3,939,628 3,311,446
Available-for-sale investments Al AL R 107,320 137,745
Financial liabilities LSRR
Amortised cost 1 815 A 3,975,989 2,682,134

Financial risks management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from associates and jointly controlled entities, pledged
bank deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and
other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no significant change to the
Group’s exposure to financial risks or the manner in

which it manages and measures the risk.

b)

SV 5 L g 4 B H B B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risks

i)

(ii)

Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”)
which is a foreign currency other than functional
currency (i.e. HKD) of the relevant group entities
(see Note 29(d)). No analysis is presented on
HKD against USD as HKD is pegged to USD
and management of the Company believes the
foreign exchange exposure is insignificant. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arises.
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits in the PRC
and variable-rate bank borrowings (see Note
32 for details of these borrowings). It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at variable-
rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arises.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market
deposit rate and the PRC official lending rate
and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising
from the Group’s RMB borrowings and HKD

borrowings respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

7. ST H @)
I8 75 B 4% B H S B O

(#7)

b) Financial risks management objectives b)
and policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

i 35 B (A7)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

i) AT ()

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates risks for bank balances and variable-rate
bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared on the
balance at the end of reporting period. 50 and
100 basis point (2010: 100 basis point) increase
or decrease are used respectively which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates risk on bank deposits, if interest rates
had been 50 basis points (2010: 100 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31st December, 2011 would
increase/decrease by HK$14,145,000 (2010:
HK$24,563,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates risk on its variable-rate bank
borrowings, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2010: 100 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31st December,
2011 would decrease/increase by HK$18,792,000
(2010: HK$16,014,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risks management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group’s equity instruments (classified as
investments held for trading and available-for-
sale investments) expose the Group to equity
price risks. Management intends to manage
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of reporting period for the
Group’s equity instruments excluding available-
for-sale investments measured at cost less any

identified impairment losses.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2010: 10%) higher/lower:

. post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2011 would increase/decrease by
HK$35,896,000 (2010: HK$41,592,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of

investments held for trading; and

. other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by HK$5,778,000 (2010:
HK$8,821,000) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of listed available-

for-sale investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not representative of the Group’s equity risk as
it only reflects the impact of equity price changes
to equity securities held at the year end but not

the exposure during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st December, 2011 in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets in the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management will monitor the
payment status of customers and perform necessary
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to

recover overdue debts.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group will
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover any
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation. Other
than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Furthermore, trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers spread across diverse industries.

Liquidity risks

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity
risk as it has sufficient funds to meet its financial
obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents generated from operations which are
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group will consider to
raise bank borrowings when it is necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risks (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk table

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate

at the end of the reporting period.

7. BT H @)

SV 5 L g 4 B H B B R

(#4F)
L) 4 B ()
i B B s e A I B 7

S A TR R
HZ BT AR - KTy
AR PR AR S5 B TS T BE 1 B SR AE I B
BRMENRE R AR
AR I BB 4 U BT AT o R A
FEMBRA G Z B E WS - 1765
EMEHTFHAELAHRT R
St B OB LS R 2 A 4R
o

Weighted On
average  demand or Total Total
effective less than 3 months 6 months undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months to 6 months  to 1year over1year cash flows amount
HE 2ok
RT3 =MA =ZHAE AR AYiBLB &
YRS /] AHH g4 P L WEAH AR
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000  HK$000
T#L T#L T#x T#x T#T T#x
As at 31st December, 2011 A =% ——4f
+ZH=+—H
Non-derivative financial A A 5 £ A
liabilities
Trade and other payables e 5 B2 5 Rk
H Al e o B 5K - 630,406 S = - 630,406 630,406
Bank borrowings AT
— variable rate -#8 6.476% 424,119 54,473 850,065 2,674,115 4,002,772 3,345,583
1,054,525 54,473 850,065 2,674,115 4,633,178 3,975,989
As at 31st December, 2010 A = F—R4f
+ZAZ+—H
Non-derivative financial A A 5 £ A
liabilities
Trade and other payables HEAT 5 55 Bk K
JOA HE AT R - 629,068 S S - 629,068 629,068
Bank borrowings AT
— variable rate -#B 5.50% 29,141 99,896 115,207 2,241,140 2,485,384 2,053,066
658,209 99,896 115,207 2,241,140 3,114,452 2,682,134
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risks management objectives

<)

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risks (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued)

The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could
change if there are movements in floating interest rates

subsequent to the reporting period.

The Group’s bank borrowings included an amount
of HK$245,000,000 (2010: Nil) has a repayment on
demand clause which are included in the “On demand
or less than 3 months” time band in the above maturity
analysis. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loan will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment date. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to HK$248,689,000.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted

market prices; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

7. BT H @)

b)
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SRAB AR K 2 3K TF 245,000,000
o ZFE R E) > HE R -
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s =8 H DA REBEA - S5 K&
A% S5 ) 2 WA R UL - o SRR
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IR R AT 8 1 i B W 1 B 3
B AR o 7 M R > AR G e R BB 42
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. BT H &

d) Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market

for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
no Level 2 or 3 fair value measurements financial

d)

S £ R L e 2
AP

TR T RRAR LA AP E
B e TEOT Hak B
NFEBEES BB =8

o R SATHEREIEMR
7 R R I BT R T
AR CRAETHEE)

. BN T EFT R TR —
Et A Z WABSN > e [ ' E
o B fE T B4 (RNE ) 5
4 (B A48 fiT k) Bl
i A BB 1

o RESAHERETIERIASE
e MR T LA T S R
EBE WA RIR) 2 EE WX
BEZAGETT LR -

T i R > A 4R S 406 2 — 4%
R =R AT HEFFEEM T -

instruments.
Level 1
W%
2011 2010
—%—-— T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T 7 7 T T
Financial assets at fair value WATHER ARIEZ
through profit or loss 5
Non-derivative financial assets R IEAT A M &
held for trading 429,897 498,103
Available-for-sale financial assets v it 1 8 M
Listed equity securities b A R 5 57,783 88,208
Total ARt 487,680 586,311

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in both

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B v Y8 e Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS
AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the

following headings:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Property investment

- represents revenue fI'OII’l property management

and rental income
Property development and trading

—  represents gross revenue received and receivable

from sales of properties
Industrial operations

—  represents the gross revenue from sale of

manufactured PVC pipes
Leisure

—  represents the income from golf club operations

and its related services
Media and entertainment

—  during the year, the Group participated in
media and entertainment business and revenue
represents the gross revenue received and

receivable from investment in concerts

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds

received and receivable from investments held for trading

under the business of securities trading, in addition to the

above aggregated revenue.

50815 WG ot A 7B B BCA
HEAH LA 4 TEI A 8

(i) PEBE

—  TEWEE M A RS

(i) PETREENEH

—  IEYIEMNE 2 Tl B
W g

(i) TEEH

—  IREHEREZBE N
Wi i

-\
am
BN
[</

(iv) PR

— IR AW Rk Y
A B AR A5 Wi A

(v) BRI 4 R

- RAFEE AEEREHEE
Y E S REVE S PR UN
R PR B 2 TR el
A 4t

BR DL b e A SRR - KE8 Wi aa AR RN

BREFRTEE P ESEREN
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B 5 Y B i M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS 8. BB BBIBA 4
AND REVENUE (Continued)
Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business BE - E2——4F+ - H=1+—HIL4F
for the year ended 31st December, 2011 consist of the BB 2 WA L B I 25 4R %R A
followings: 1T 50478
2011 2010
T =
HKS$’°000 HK$°000
T 7 7 T # T
Revenue from sale of properties HEWEZBA 1,584,876 3,267,793
Revenue from sale of goods E M Z A 41,636 49,329
Revenue from rendering of services from 15 T S BR g R IR
golf club operations R Z Wt A 100,575 79,428
Revenue from property rental and E WSS L UN
management fee 182,881 136,560
Revenue from media and entertainment U R g g SRS 2 U A 9,637 -
Revenue WA 1,919,605 3,533,110
Gross proceeds from sale of securities HAE A Bl 100,443 185,627
Gross proceeds from operations fit=gl &3 Lk ] 2,020,048 3,718,737
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. NEEPR
The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based on 7 AR [H] 7 A8 N R A R Y e g R
information reported to the chief operating decision makers, AR R SEAEEAL H Y T () 35 2 v T
the Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of HE (AN FEITES) rifE 2 &
resource allocation and performance assessment. In addition LT 4 o R EES () (v) A o A £
to those set out in Note 8(i) to (v), the Group’s operating WY GREIEHRGEAY k& s
segments under HKFRS 8 include securities trading segment NEBEAITEESEREZEEE S
which is dealing in investments held for trading. I HE o
2011 G- S
Property
Property  Development Industrial Media and Securities
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
kR 13 Y3
B33 4 R TEEH ik WA R wit
HKS$ 000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
T#i T T T#L T#L T#L T#i
GROSS PROCEEDS BEREER
FROM OPERATIONS L LIS
- SEGMENT REVENUE 182,881 1,584,876 41,636 100,575 9,637 100,443 2,020,048
RESULTS 4
Segment profit (loss) SR (B 192,819 915,836 (4,131) 2,249 (3,651) (248,187) 854,935
Other unallocated income FAEART B 71,953
Unallocated expenses VST 15 (52,464)
Finance costs Mg EH (159,680)
714,744
Share of results of associates TIHE AR 2 E5 (1,384)
Share of results of jointly BIEGEGEES
controlled entities 4,192
Profit before taxation W 8 i i 1 717,552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated
income statement, the accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 4. For the details of revenue from each
type of business and reconciliation of segment revenue
to the Group’s revenue of HK$1,919,605,000 (2010:
HK$3,533,110,000), please refer to Note 8.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates and jointly controlled
entities, other non-recurring income and expenses and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NEEF @)
2010 BB
Property
Property  Development Industrial Media and Securities
Investment and Trading Operations Leisure  Entertainment Trading Total
EL g it R
WERE L& TEEH IS PR BHHE EEi
HKS$ 000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
T T F#T F#T FiEr FET T
GROSS PROCEEDS BB
FROM OPERATIONS — B
- SEGMENT REVENUE 136,560 3,267,793 49,329 79,428 - 185,627 3,718,737
RESULTS #5
Segment profit (loss) A UER) 258,795 2,014,600 (2,518) (5,026) = 158,245 2,424,096
Other unallocated income KRB A 79,399
Unallocated expenses AT (50,680)
Finance costs BEERN (56,070)
2,396,745
Share of results of associates 3 - YNEIbE 1,451
Share of results of jointly BIEGEGE LS
controlled entities 11,917
Profit before taxation BB i A 2,410,113

B 43 FE IS B4 G R 3 2% v ) 4l
AZ B FARR S SESEZ &
FHBCOR B A A [ B 4Rk 2 & T BOR
AR o % BB WA BRI I 4 Tk
A BLA L L A 1,919,605,00095 7T ( —
T — A 13,533,110,0009 70) 2 B R
FE I O B RS o

Jr R A (k5 1R) 46 4% 20 B 3641 I
WA FEA P RATBURAS ~ 355 -
ML AR Z KRB S EREL
SR HoAth IF R R WA K B S K% il
HHRM - RATER 2 RER D
[WES P



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak o W5 0 o Bk ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 BE - E ——FE+ " H=1+—HIL4EE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief
operating decision maker review the consolidated financial

position of the Group as a whole to assess their performance.

Management is more focus on the results of the Group.

Other Information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

9.

NRER )

TEEERREUFNALE LS
A B AR DL DA SFAG B K B R R A R
B SOl 2 5 2 SR A KRR -
JE WS WA 2 A

J b ¥R

HE RO B 2 & B A

Property
Property  Development Industrial Media and Securities
Investment  and Trading Operations Leisure  Entertainment Trading Other Total
LES§ it &
nERE R TH%EH el B Y £33 EHEE Hib ARt
HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
T T T T T TH#T T THT
2011 SRk
Depreciation of property, EN T T
plant and equipment 1,924 8,446 4,246 15,664 = = 1,492 31,772
Amortisation of lease premium for land TR - - 753 6,341 - - 5 7,099
(Recovery)/allowance for bad and U (k) /Bt
doubtful debts, net of bad O 411 5 B
debts written off (5) - (843) (71) 690 - - (229)
Net gain on disposal and fair value BENEDLERATERES
changes of investment properties AR 104,746 - - - - - - 104,746
Unrealised loss on fair value changes of HEREATHEREEL
investments held for trading RERER = - - - - 253,418 - 253,418
2010 “Z-%F
Depreciation of property, VEN GO HiN
plant and equipment 1,883 2,020 4,105 15,581 - - 1,403 24,992
Amortisation of lease premium for land 10T 5 % JT1 84 - - 721 5,990 - - 5 6,716
Allowance for bad and doubtful debes, FERB S SRR E
net of bad debts recovery (4) - 1,365 4 - - - 1,365
Net gain on disposal and fair value RENELERATHED
changes of investment properties EEZ R 184,167 - - - - - - 184,167
Unrealised gain on fair value changes of HEREAFHERBELL
investments held for trading FEB R = &= = &= = 141,991 = 141,991
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, revenue from
single customer in property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$245,125,000 which contributed

to approximately 12.77% of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, no single customer

contributed to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations, assets and revenue are substantially
situated in or derived from the mainland China. The Group’s
revenue of property investment and property development
and trading from external customers is based on location
of properties sold and leased out. Revenue of industrial
operations from external customers is based on the location
of customers. Revenue of leisure from external customers is

based on the location of services provided.

Revenue from media and entertainment business is based
on the location of the concerts or films exhibited, which are

substantially derived from Hong Kong.

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred
tax assets and available-for-sale investments, amounted
to HK$8,188,277,000 (2010: HK$7,427,766,000) by
geographical location of the assets and operation of the
associates and jointly controlled entities are substantially

situated in the mainland China.

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set

out in Note 8.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

10. OTHER INCOME

10. oAb A

2011 2010
e SRS TR A
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T 77 T i# T
Other income included: Ho At g A 45 -
Interest income ISR ON 40,908 48,520
Dividends from available-for-sale AR E R E 2 B LA
investments — listed — bk 3,835 5,114
Dividends from available-for-sale Al 2 B A
investments — unlisted — LT - 19,837
11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 11. Hfb W 25 22 6 8
2011 2010
e Sl TR A
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T# F itk oT
Recovery/(allowance) for bad and REIR I @/ (f3:45) >
doubtful debts, net of bad debts 41 B SRR L, i el
written off/recovery 229 (1,365)
Net loss on disposal/write off of property, GiR-E €L E )Jﬂ'ﬁb;%&
plant and equipment E&ﬁﬁﬁ@éﬁ i (287) (11,698)
Net exchange gain BEE 52, 0 4 1 #H 19,073 9,209
19,015 (3,854)
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. @ 2 H
2011 2010
e Sl i TR AR
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T 77 T T
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable HBHMERZMITERZ
FE
— within five years —HEN 149,793 58,269
— over five years —fAER E 11,077 —
160,870 58,269
Less: interest capitalised (Note 22) W BAAE R E (FAE22) (1,190) (2,199)
159,680 56,070

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose from specific

borrowings.

TEfHHE -
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13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

13. BR7BE wii dt A

2011 2010
e & R —FAE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T# T i
Profit before taxation has been arrived W Bl B 6 A1) E 1R
at after charging:
Staff costs BT A 86,551 70,377
Provident fund scheme contributions O FE A REE R 3K 6,834 5,476
Total staff costs (Note) B TR (M) 93,385 75,853
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S Rl P 4 2,997 2,929
Depreciation of property, S ENN N & R
plant and equipment 31,772 24,992
Amortisation of lease premium for land o AH B T 4
(included in administrative expenses) (FEAITECE M) 7,099 6,716
Minimum lease payment under REHEZ REHE
operating leases 10,494 9,638
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses sl B 8 2 A7 B A 475,998 949,124
and after crediting: A e FFA
Gross rental income from LS LUE YA PN
investment properties 159,572 119,666
Less: direct operating expenses from o AENE AR EIRAZ
investment properties that generated BEYEZ HE
rental income during the year =i (25,356) (17,936)
Net rental income from investment EC - LUJE Vil (k-
properties 134,216 101,730
Dividends from investments held HEREZRERA
for trading (included in net (loss) (FFAFERE
gain in investments held for trading) (5 18) i 2 35 40 1,770 3,262
Net realised gain (loss) on disposal of WEREYEEE 2
investment properties (included in net gain W& (JE548) W8 (FHA
on disposal and fair value changes BEYENE LAFHE
of investment properties) 58 ) IRF 7 A 2 0 AR VR AR 266 (7,886)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

RYN
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 13. BB ui e Ml ()
Note: W
The total staff costs included emoluments paid to Directors as follows:— BB TRAGIENTEEZMSWT
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution
and other to pension Total
Fees benefits scheme emoluments
Fa- M BB
Name of Director WA g B Je b4 A il # ak T 5 44 781
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T#C T#C T # T# T
2011 e
Executive directors AT P
Madam Hsu Feng (g - 10,444 12 10,456
Mr. Tong Albert B ¥Rl e A = 3,350 12 3,362
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles A = 2,151 12 2,163
Mr. Yeung Kam Hoi 1 0 08 5l A = 2,420 12 2,432
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen HERE S - 1,514 - 1,514
Independent non-executive 1 kAT wE
directors
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIEF S A 113 = = 113
Mr. Lee Chan Fai ZE B Sk 113 - - 113
Mr. Sean S ] Wang g A 79 - - 79
Resigned director BE L
Madam Tung Wai Yee #HER L L 43 6 - 49
348 19,885 48 20,281
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B 5 Y B i M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

13. BRBLw B A 42)

Note: (Continued) Mt (4)
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution
and other to pension Total
Fees benefits scheme emoluments
B HEAL & = Z Bk
Name of Director #wHL W Ml 4 e oAb AR ) BRI P < A5
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
T T FitoT Tt oT Tt oT
2010 R AR
Executive directors AT
Madam Hsu Feng o Wt - 9,597 12 9,609
Mr. Tong Albert % TR e A - 2,523 12 2,535
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles Vi F 3 - 1,448 12 1,460
Mr. Yeung Kam Hoi o BT e - 1,012 5 1,017
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen FEIRE A - 1,488 - 1,488
Independent non-executive W AT E P
directors
Madam Tung Wai Yee EERLL 144 11 - 155
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar 5 IR A 102 - - 102
Mr. Lee Chan Fai AR S A 102 = = 102
348 16,079 41 16,468
No Directors waived any emoluments for both years. A TR AF B A M 4 SR R i 2 4T ]
4o
For the year ended 31st December, 2011, all (2010: four) of BE - ZE——4F+H=+—HIL4F
the five highest paid individuals of the Group were Directors. B AL R ST T N+ 42
The aggregate emoluments of the remaining one highest paid T F—F A PUA) B o i
individual for the year of 2010 was as follows: F— TR L L BR — o B i A £
Z AR
2011 2010
Y SNIV Iy WP Y
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T#x T # T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, AR 4 B R AR
other allowances and benefits in kind HoAh G N B R £ = 1,212
Provident fund scheme contributions T A REE K - -
= 1,212
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

14. TAXATION 14. BiH
2011 2010
R —-—4 —“FT-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x T
The charge comprises: S AL
Hong Kong Profits Tax B 5B - 23,587
PRC (other than Hong Kong) Enterprise AL E AR
Income Tax calculated at tax rates prevailing 5% 2 %5 BT 75 w15 # [ 2
in the respective jurisdictions where the BATH RFH A 2
relevant individual group companies operate (AN G145 7 ¥ ) 4b 3 fir 15 i 159,138 285,768
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) Fp B B (R B 566,215 1,193,464
Dividend withholding tax Ji 2 0 BB 621 80
(Overprovision) underprovision in prior years #fE4F FE (& B )
BHA L
— PRC (other than Hong Kong) Enterprise — R (AR )
Income Tax T 15 R (7,246) 7,485
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — MG = 5,307
718,728 1,515,691
Deferred tax credit (Note 33) R SEBLIA K S (M £33 (80,591) (80,108)
Total tax charges for the year A B TE B S AR 638,137 1,435,583
The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2010: B FASBLT A 2 BLR16.5% (—
16.5%). No tax is payable on the profit arising in Hong F—FHE165%) A _F——4F &
Kong in 2011 since there is no assessable profit for the year. S 41 8 ER A Vi ] > R 0 Sl R A R AR
A A 7 i Vi ] 2 B A B I o
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the A JH At ) ¥ RE [ 7 AR 2 B TE T 4% AH B
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. AL 2 BT B H -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

14. BLH ()

14. TAXATION (Conrinued)

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law
of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”)
by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th
December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations changed the tax rate
from 15% to 25% with effect from 1st January, 2008. There
will be a transitional period for enterprises that currently
receive preferential tax treatments granted by relevant tax
authorities. Enterprises that are subject to a PRC income
tax rate lower than 25% may continue to enjoy the lower
PRC income tax rate and gradually transfer to the new PRC
income tax rate within five years after the effective date of
the New Law.

The major subsidiaries have their operations located in
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC, according to the New
Law which was effective on Ist January, 2008, the income
tax rate was 18% with effect from 1st January, 2008 and will
be gradually increased to 25% in 5 years. The income tax
rate for the year ended 31st December, 2011 is 24% (2010:
229%).

Tomson Group Limited %} i 4 B A B2 v

REERLFEZHRH > FEHE
F A3 M (B A PSR
) ([HBE]) - R ZFRELFE+
H7S H > v BB 55 B 8 A 0 B A e
AR o B Bl R R B AR R ASBLE A
ZEZNFE—H—HREH15%HEE
25% o 3 Bt == A AH B B G O 4% B
BB A ZER A W o HAK 25%
Z B AR B R 2 A ] A A
A AR b BT AR B R 3 R BT
AU AR AR N B E R
PR BLER o

EEt 2 /A e < 3 e S B R
AT RBER —FFNE—H—H
B B T NE—H—
H A 2 I 15 BB R 5 189 » M % 17 47
% 1N 225% - B & & — —4F
T A=t —HIEFEEZ ISR R
F924% ( FE—F4E 122%) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

14. TAXATION (Conrinued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before AERE I B 45 A R 2 2 R B R S R
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: ZHEIEWNR
2011 2010
%4 —T%E
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T# 7 T T

Profit before taxation (excluding share of
results of associates and jointly

controlled entities)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
24% (2010: 22%) (Note)

Wk B 11 36 A1) (AN 0 45 AL
Wa AN NEEREZ
E ) 714,744 2,396,745

Fi A b T A5 B8 K 24%
(ZF—F4FE 1 20%)

At B (WAt ) 171,539 527,284

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised oK e w8 B T s 1 2 BB R 49,619 3,452
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 8 & & # B i 1| g A 1T E

in determining taxable profit Fnwi BA 52 2 BB 52,137 36,766
Tax effect of deductible temporary KRS AT AR T B 2 IR

difference not recognised ER BB = 5,283
Tax effect of income that is not assessable 5 0 T WA U6k ) IR O 2 A

in determining taxable profit 3 W)\Zﬁﬂ'%ﬁﬁ k- (2,881) (2,412)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B H DA R AERE 2

recognised T JE g5 48 = (2,309)
(Overprovision) underprovision of income AL AR TR B (R B )

taxes in prior years B A 2 (7,246) 12,792
Effect on PRC LAT Hh Bt G BB 2 R 373,854 861,437
Dividend withholding tax =kl ¢k 621 80
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate for JRE FH A 28 o T 2 R

deferred tax over current tax rate on e 7 B B e e R R B

taxable temporary differences W2 B 5 2 494 1,072
Effect of tax rate in different jurisdiction AN [R] F v RE I R R 2 = (7,862)
Tax expense for the year AF 8 B IA B S 638,137 1,435,583
Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 33. R FE T 2 w1 O B EE33 e
Note: The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate MsE: PRI SBI R A AR H L%

of the jurisdiction where the major operations of the ST T IR 2 A RE I 2 BT AR B
Group are based. o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

15. DIVIDEND 15.

The Directors declared payment of an interim dividend of 4
HK cents per share (2010: final dividend of 6 HK cents per
share) amounting to approximately HK$56,581,000 (2010:
HK$83,840,000) for the year ended 31st December, 2011.

Of the dividend paid during the year, approximately
HK$49,072,000 was settled in shares under the Company’s
scrip dividend scheme approved by the Company on 2nd
June, 2011 in respect of the final dividend for the year ended
31st December, 2010.

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

JBe B,

HFHRERHBE __F——4FT2H
=t —H IR AR S 4 W Al
(= —FF KW E & ReusAl) -
&34 556,581,000 T ( T — &
1 83,840,000 7T ) ©

WEANF R F——FNH ZHEk
BE-F-FE+ =+ —HILF
BE 2 R WIS A o 2 DA IRAC B st #)
AAE B A %R 4949,072,000 8% 76 T3
DAy 3 At o

(532 ¥

A ) HE o 4 A N A A BB R I
WEAR BN TS RRIE AT R R

2011 2010
SR DR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# 7 T i#oT
Earnings P
Profit for the year attributable to owners of 4 A F DA 5t 55 45 i 5L A 8 A|
the Company for the purposes of basic L 5 A AR T R 2 AR
earnings per share and diluted earnings A i 4 A N A i A
per share 15,210 860,018
Number of shares Je 6y ¥ H

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &t 5 & I H A< 28 F| 2 3% 4 i

for the purpose of basic earnings per share T HE - 24

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares e 58 J 2 T f v
— share options — Ji IR E

Weighted average number of ordinary shares w53 1 I 4 v 1% 2 A 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 5 48 JIi fill #E ~F- ) 84

1 13 Tomson Group Limited %Ki 4 B4 A ¥

1,406,107,408 1,371,386,209

527,427 3,173,822

1,406,634,835 1,374,560,031
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. &Y E
The Group
A
HK$’000
T#7x
AT FAIR VALUE R
At 1st January, 2010 R-F—-FFE—-A—H 5,544,960
Additions B 4,940
Net loss on fair value changes on date of disposal A 8 & H 23~ {8 5 B g Ak 2 s 515 3 (7,886)
Disposal B (88,361)
Gain on fair value changes at the end of A R AN S (B 5 B A A 2 Wi AR
the reporting period 192,053
Exchange adjustments BEE 50, 74 & 207,950
At 31st December, 2010 HWoE—-FFE+F+—H=+—H 5,853,656
Net gain on fair value changes on date of disposal & Hi 8 & H /(B 5 B & A= 2 Wi 2 13 46 266
Disposal e (1,169)
Gain on fair value changes at the end of e R O S (B B 7 A 2 W AR
the reporting period 104,480
Exchange adjustments BEE 50, 3 R 273,080
At 31st December, 2011 REF—-—H+ZH=1+—H 6,230,313
The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong AL BB B Y ERE W USMNEE
Kong and are held under operating leases. WAL B E A -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

17. BEEWE w0

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31st December, 2011 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by a professional
independent valuer not connected with the Group. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties and the net income
derived from existing tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary income potential of the properties. As a result of
the valuation, a gain on fair value changes of approximately
HK$104,480,000 (2010: HK$192,053,000) was credited to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted

for as investment properties.

The carrying amount of investment properties held outside

Hong Kong shown above comprises:

W FE——F+H=+—H A%
B 2 B W 2N A T 4 B 4 [ A
S IR 22 ) 8 ST BSE A (B R E H AT
A B 2 FEHE AN BR - {5 (B 9 2 7% BT
WM EEERIE B AHAN
RN A & 7 E K -R N R
T AE o A% 8 8 30 - (8 5 8 2 AR IR
% #1104,480,000%5 J6 ( & — R A4F
192,053,000% ) O RF A E - F
—— T AT HIEFEZER
FIH R A o

A S H AR B A - DUBROH &
R g RIENRERINE/E i E AR /N
FEE G W B R IUE BB
Y X

ML ETE R DIAMS A R I E Y 36 2R
T {E L4

2011 2010
S ST
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T #C T T

Held under: eI T A TR -
Long lease R4 5,019,748 4,704,009
Medium-term lease rh 9 L 4 1,210,565 1,149,647
6,230,313 5,853,656

Tomson Group Limited %} i 4 B A B2 v




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3k ~ B 55 B it A
Furniture,
Construction fixtures and
Leasehold land Plant and work-in-  equipment and
and buildings equipment progress  motor vehicles Total
IR BB FEA
BT OBR R ERETH R R Hi
HKS$°000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$000
T#xT FH#xL T FH#x T
THE GROUP AR
At cost Wi
At Ist January, 2010 RZE-FE-]—H 532,042 76,584 10,424 102,616 721,666
Additions wE - 1,265 790 5,309 7,364
Disposals & - = = (9,706) (9,7006)
Wiritten off s = = (11,410) (870) (12,280)
Exchange adjustments HE 54, 9 4 19,045 2,919 398 3,408 25,770
At 31st December, 2010 W R R
+ZA=+—H 551,087 80,768 202 100,757 732,814
Additions wE 340,392 358 - 3,290 344,040
Disposals & - - - (272) (272)
Written off s - = (207) (1,111) (1,318)
Exchange adjustments HE i 24,219 3,770 5 4,058 32,052
At 31st December, 2011 NoF—— A
+-H=+—H 915,698 84,896 - 106,722 1,107,316
Accumulated depreciation Rl 9 #
At st January, 2010 RoE—FE—~]—H 200,533 62,265 = 78,704 341,502
Provided for the year A 17,283 1,529 - 6,180 24,992
Eliminated on disposals R - - - (8,400) (8,400)
Eliminated on written off T8 s ) B = = = (807) (807)
Exchange adjustments EE 5 5 8 7,230 2,375 - 2,628 12,233
At 31st December, 2010 e S 243
+-H=+—H 225,046 66,169 - 78,305 369,520
Provided for the year N 23,691 1,406 - 6,675 31,772
Eliminated on disposals AR T8 - - - (244) (244)
Eliminated on written off L 5 8 - - - (979) (979)
Exchange adjustments HE 5. 34 4 9,968 3,088 - 3,161 16,217
At 31st December, 2011 WoF——4F
+ZA=+—H 258,705 70,663 = 86,918 416,286
Carrying values W i
At 315t December, 2011 R
+ZH=Z+—H 656,993 14,233 - 19,804 691,030
At 31st December, 2010 WZE—FAE
+ZHA=+—H 326,041 14,599 202 22,452 363,294
The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong AR B 2 A b AL AR U LA N i
under medium-term lease. e P R AR A o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

19. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND 19. L3 =8
The Group’s lease premium for land comprises: AREE Y + A&
2011 2010
=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# 7 T T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: TEA U I A 15 A 2 1 il
Medium-term lease B H ) 175 180
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: T LA I A7 A 2
Long lease R EITH 4 76,499 79,029
76,674 79,209
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Bt B9 B 7
Current assets T 7,032 6,720
Non-current assets IE I W 69,642 72,489
76,674 79,209
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

20. FILM DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS

21.

20. S 84T B

The Group
AREH
HK$’000
T #C
Cost AR
At st January, 2010 and 31st December, 2010 W oFE—-FF—-H—H &
—F—FE+H=+—H =
Additions NE 5,741
At 31st December, 2011 AFE——E A=+ —H 5,741
Amortisation B8
At st January, 2010 and 31st December, 2010 MW E—-FHFE—H—HK
—E-BHE+=A=+—H :
Provided for the year A S 15 =
At 31st December, 2011 WwW-_E—-—#+_H=+—H —
Carrying value YR v
At 31st December, 2011 w2 ——4E+ " H=+—H 5,741

At 31st December, 2010

Film distribution rights are amortised on the proportion of
actual income earned during the year to the total estimated
income over their economic beneficial period. As no income
was recognised during the year, no amortisation was provided

for the year.

PREPAYMENT FOR FILM DISTRIBUTION
RIGHTS

Prepayment for film distribution rights represented the
prepaid licensed rights for film distribution. The territories
of film distribution rights are mainly in Hong Kong and

Macau.

21.

BoE—BEL A =R

W BEATHE T s HL AR £ B4 4E N
BRSO BT AG Al A S8 2 L 1 4
S o b 7 A Sl S R BB AT TR > A
A 37 288 A1 AT fo] $4 S

W AT RETE AT

ST BRAT RETEAT BAE R RS AT b

AT Ko
W IR

JrEEAT HE B M I E B S AR
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. B h Y E
The Group
ARLEH

2011 2010
R R
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T 77 T T
At 1st January, at cost h—H—H > A 2,412,965 450,130
Additions B 162,577 2,222,369

Acquisition of assets through acquisition of 475 348 A i — ] l}ﬁ%/ﬁ |
a subsidiary W W - 350,000
Interest capitalised BRI E 1,190 2,199

Transferred from deposits paid A T AR

for land use rights SRR 1,484,387 -
Transferred to properties held for sale AT EY % = (628,879)
Exchange adjustments [ o, 5 & 95,622 17,146
At 31st December, at cost R H=+—H s 4,156,741 2,412,965

Properties under development under current assets of
approximately HK$4,156,741,000 (2010: HK$2,412,965,000)

are expected to be completed after twelve months from the end

of reporting period.

23. DEPOSITS PAID FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 23.

At 31st December, 2011, deposits of HK$872,724,000
(2010: HK$2,157,192,000) was paid for the land use rights
located in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC with a

site area of approximately 128,118 square meters (2010:

approximately 300,700 square meters) and the land use

rights certificate will be delivered not later than end of 2013.

1 19 Tomson Group Limited %Ki 4 B4 A ¥

MEBEERNMNERSPIY EL
4,156,741,000% 76 ( =& — T4
2,412,965,000% JC) TE 51 A & it i
BIR MR H R & e

F A 2 T T

WoZ——4%+-_A=Z+—H 2
A7 7 A B b T TR RO I 2 e
A RT 4:872,724,0008 0 ( —F — &
. :2,157,192,000% J0) ° 7% iR T Hi 2
AR AR 128,118 F ok (ZF—F
1 %9300,700°F 75 K) > T - H Al A
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

24. GOODWILL

24, B

The Group
A 4R 14
HKS$°000
T#7x
Cost and carrying value JE AR B YR i L
At 1st January, 2010, 31st December, BE—EFE—H—H-
2010 and 31st December, 2011 TR -FFEFZA=ZtT—H K
—Z—-—%+-"HA=1+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”)
of a wholly owned subsidiary which is engaged in property

development and trading activities.

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, management of
the Group determined that there was no impairment of the

CGU containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was measured based
on fair value less costs to sell calculation by reference to
observable market price for the underlying properties. It
was determined by management’s past experience, based on
the estimated gross profit from selling of properties to be
developed, taking into the consideration of the prevailing

market price.

7R T 2 — I A I s R R B
7 A B W A o R R
EEICE

BE-F——F+_HA=+—HILHF
JEE - A A VA8 B I R O M B e E A
B A R

HamE/ Rk meHE2E5H
B4 2 2 Al B T S AR IR A E
90 A5 SRS w5 T R e ol A R
19 308 1 48 B tR 2 > ARAR I B EE 0 )
38 B W TR B A EE A S R R
T -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25. IR A6 2 b
The Group
ARLEH
2011 2010
%4 ST EE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T 77 T i# T
Cost of unlisted investments in associates REE AT ZIE BT
G A 30,203 30,203
Share of post-acquisition losses and JRE A S B A% 5 18
other comprehensive income, net of oA 4 T 0 25
dividend received 24N 2 Uik E (6,972) (5,483)
23,231 24,720
Amounts due from associates B 4 8 A R K 10,721 9,490
33,952 34,210
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s A £E B W N R Y B R A 2
associates is set out below: T
2011 2010
=
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T 7 7 T T
Total assets MG E 139,301 127,294
Total liabilities HAAH (78,862) (62,255)
Net assets A E 60,439 65,039
Group’s share of associates’ net assets AL B REAG W 8 s Wl 2
HEE 23,231 24,720
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. N B A G ZHE2E ()
2011 2010
—e——g  —T-TH
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T# F it T
Revenue A 44,398 31,032
(Loss) profit for the year (R il (4,491) 6,827
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hifth 2w (B S2) U4 (1,697) 1,768
Group’s share of associates’ AL AR G S AR 2
other comprehensive (expense) Ho 2T (B SZ) i i
income for the year (105) 639
Group’s share of associates’ (loss) N EEEy g /N
profit for the year (F18) % A (1,384) 1,451
Group’s share of associates’ (loss) AL ARG S AR 2
profit and other comprehensive (5 48) i A1) S A
(expense) income for the year AT (B ) Ikt (1,489) 2,090

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free

and have no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from
associates will not be repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amounts

have been classified as non-current assets.

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2011 are
included in Note 43.

- C/NEIVN OLE. TiE R =W E 3T
TE Ji K o

EHGE S Hﬁ%%&ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂi? T e

MR+ A MR W AHE
I I U B

FEBES AR _F——44F+_H
= B 2 REE N M EE43 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26. REBALEZREL

ENTITIES
The Group
7 4 1
2011 2010
R4 —_FTFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# 7 T T
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly REEAEEZF BT
controlled entities G A 965,954 965,954
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of B A Wi g A% s K - 2 FTBR
dividend received B B S 3,566 11,266
Exchange difference arising from MAGBEREFELZ
translation of jointly controlled entities VE 58, 2% %A 93,166 45,513
1,062,686 1,022,733
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity & & & 3 KK 513 513
1,063,199 1,023,246

For the year 2010, Tianjin Tomson Development Co.,
Limited, indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a joint venture agreement with an
unrelated PRC partner to establish Tianjin Jinwan Property
Co., Limited (“Jinwan Property”) in the PRC and held 51%
interest of registered capital at the end of the year. However,
Jinwan Property is jointly controlled by the Group and the
PRC partner by virtue of contractual arrangements among
shareholders by which the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity of jointly controlled entity
require the approval by at least two-third voting right in
the board meeting of Jinwan Property. Therefore, Jinwan
Property is classified as a jointly controlled entity of the

Group.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26.
ENTITIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of jointly

controlled entities attributable to the Group’s interest therein

RA B ()

A7 T A 4 T AL 5 7 A 3 2 AR Y
BERMEMT

is set out below:

2011 2010
g —xxF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T 7 7 T T
Current assets T E 575,317 342,207
Non-current assets IE W B & 729,363 704,886
Current liabilities iR (241,994) (24,360)
Non-current liabilities Pl R=R = =
2011 2010
S SNV WY
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# F it T
Income recognised in consolidated T &7 A ) 2 e BRI A
income statement 122,707 119,764
Expenses recognised in consolidated A & A FI R T RE B 2
income statement (118,515) (107,847)
The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is BB A FE RO KA - e B Rl
unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms. IEi] 7E % R

In the opinion of the Directors, the amount due from a
jointly controlled entity will not be repayable within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period and accordingly,

the amount has been classified as non-current assets.

Details of jointly controlled entities at 31st December, 2011
are included in Note 43.

HH L BB ROR IR
BR8N (B R - R RZ RS
fEIE B & E o

e e
2 AR I 343
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

27. Wik i Bt

27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, 2011

comprise:

WoF— it A SR 2T
i 5 8 9 -

The Group
ALH
2011 2010
% F T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T 77 T T
Listed investments: iR E:
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — AR B RAS 7 57,783 88,208
Unlisted equity investments LA KE 49,022 49,022
Club debenture o T 5 515 515
107,320 137,745

As at the end of the reporting period, all available-for-
sale investments were stated at fair value, except for those
unlisted equity investments and club debenture, the fair
value of which cannot be measured reliably. Fair value of
listed equity investments have been determined by reference
to quoted market prices. No impairment loss was recognised

for both years.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in
private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the Directors of the Company are of the

opinion that their values cannot be measured reliably.

Tomson Group Limited %} i 4 B A B2 v
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

28. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 28. (FE#RYE

Investments held for trading represent equity securities listed

Ry A e
in Hong Kong.
29. NET CURRENT ASSETS 29. Vi B A

(@) MEWCR S RAK ~ S0 fib HEBCHR

(a) Trade and other receivables and

prepayments

The general credit terms of the Group given to trade
customers are within 60 days. A longer credit period
may be granted to customers with long business
relationship. The Group seeks to maintain strict control

over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and
prepayments are trade receivables, net of impairment
losses, of HK$39,388,000 (2010: HK$32,105,000) and
their aged analysis as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

ok B A K

AEMGTHEOEF 2B
BRI HOH N - AEE S GH T
ARMEGRABZFFRR 2
B o A 42 [ a3 R A 9 B
W SR A L et B 2 DA SRR A5 45 JL

IKD/&O

TE MW B 5 FR A~ JH At BB i R K
J TR AT 3T R B EE B RCE 5 IR
X (CREFN IR Wk (E 5 15) 39,388,000
WIT (ZF —F 4 132,105,000%
J6) - HRA R IR 2 BRE 4B a0
T

The Group
A

2011 2010
e . TR
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T # F#
0 — 3 months EE =10 H 24,211 20,502
4 — 6 months AN iz 7,476 5,948
7 — 12 months +tE+ @A 7,701 5,655
39,388 32,105
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 29. %ﬁy]ﬁ%ﬁ{ﬁ (45)

(@) MRS RAK ~ S0 HE R

(a) Trade and other receivables and

prepayments (Continued)

In general, the Group makes impairment for trade
receivables over one year because historical experience
is such that rececivables that are past due beyond one
year are generally not recoverable. Included in the
Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$31,459,000 (2010:
HK$27,244,000) which are past due but not provided
for impairment loss. These receivables relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of these receivables is 180 days (2010:
180 days).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

K B AT K (a2)

— s ALEEE R —FU L
Z MEWE B Mk A/ WM > R
T R B B R i —4E L b
2 WA R A R i [m] o AR 4
R S R A SR EE T
a0 R OB R 1 k(e 4R 43
Z MEWE 5 Bk > HERH(E & 3L
31,459,000% o0 ( = F — F 4
27,244,000%5 70) o I A5 R ISR 3K
Ty BA AL [ 2 Z IR AL B R AP 2
ALK AR o R
EMEARG ERNEEE R &
K s B B 45 8RB 4 vl
2 Bl v O JE R O 4 A R T
P& U AE E A o AR 1B R A
S5 G R AT AT HE AP S o 1S B R
WA Y IR 25 180K (&
— A 180 K) o

8 S (E R AR B 2 B W B 5 ARk

impaired: ZIRET
The Group
7 4R 14

2011 2010
e S 3 —E-FE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T#7x T T
61 — 90 days 61%90K 17,186 16,230
91- 180 days 91%180K 6,572 5,359
181-365 days 181%2365K 7,701 5,655
Total &t 31,459 27,244
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 29. MEVE el ()

(a) Trade and other receivables and (a) MEWCE B Ak ~ 0 i e Wi i
prepayments (Continued) Sk B AT KW ()
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade TEWE 5 E Rz RIERM 2~ &
receivables: i

The Group
A4
2011 2010
% 3T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE Fib
Balance at beginning of the year EH] & B 13,171 11,283
Impairment losses recognised LB 5 R KR R 2
on trade receivables WA e 1R - 1,453
Recovery of impairment loss 128 0] 9 {1 Jes 4R (1,028) i
Exchange adjustments e b, ) B 570 435
Balance at end of the year AR 12,713 13,171
Other receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of A B TR A9 (H /53,061,000 T
HK$3,061,000 (2010: HK$2,821,000) are individually (ZFE—FH:2,821,000870) &
impaired as the amount is unlikely to be recovered from At i BE SO K AT fig A BE (1
the relevant debtors. M B s fisE VAR B (E o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and

29. B ¥ R (1)

(@) MRS RAK ~ S0 HE R

prepayments (Concinued) Sk B A KW ()
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts oAt B U BE X 7 R AR 184l 2 5
on other receivables: i
The Group
A 4R 1
2011 2010
—F—-—4 —“T-FF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T#7x T
Balance at beginning of the year AT G R 2,821 2,625
Impairment losses recognised A9 G At 8 i R K R 2
on other receivables WA 5 1R 109 100
Recovery of impairment loss 15 ] 35 (B A5 48 = (4)
Exchange adjustments [ifE e, 3] 4 131 100
Balance at end of the year SRR GE R 3,061 2,821

During the year, the Group has written off trade
receivables through the consolidated income statement
in the amount of HK$690,000 (2010: bad debts
recovery HK$184,000). The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

29. B ¥ S )

(b) Inventories b H#E
Deetails of inventories are as follows: TEEHENIT
The Group
4R 1

2011 2010
% TR
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T#7x F#TT
Raw materials J R} 5,856 8,774
Work-in-progress TE R 2,625 2,528
Finished goods B8 11,359 8,392
Packaging materials and accessories £, % R R e A 7,194 6,523
27,034 26,217

(c)

Trade and other payables and accruals

Included in trade and other payables and accruals
are trade payables of HK$222,763,000 (2010:
HK$235,521,000) and their aged analysis as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

(© MEAT RSN ~ J0fi HEAS IR
oK B BB B

TE MEAS & 5 Wk~ A B A+ R 3K
R A4S EAS & ) R K
222,763,000% 70 ( = F — FA4F
235,521,000 70 ) - H it R 5

RZERE AT
The Group

ARLEH
2011 2010
g  —TEE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T #7C T i# T
0 — 3 months F 2 =0 H 59,708 93,610
4 — 6 months MYz S AE A 488 1,025
7 — 12 months L&A 1,308 93
over 1 year —4EPL E 161,259 140,793
222,763 235,521

The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe.

WRZEREM AR -AELEHD
1) 5 SV B B B BB L R
A7 E AT BRI A E B A o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

29. VRENE RS )

(d) Cash and bank balances d) Bl&E BT
The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and SRR IE AR E A 2 B4 R
short-term bank deposits at market deposit interest =R H 8% LA A2 B Y ke B AR AT AR
rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.5% (2010: 0.01% to FoHMHEMNZEAN Fo.01)HEE
2.25%) per annum with an original maturity of three 35 (T F— FTAF A I K0.01
months or less. JEZE2.25J8) o
Included in cash and bank balances are the following TE 4 RARITEE RN A B B
amounts denominated in a currency other than the ZIEE DL AN 2 R
functional currency of the entities to which they relate:
The Group
A 45 1
2011 2010
—F—-—4 —“FT-FF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T#x T#TT
USD e 56,470 85,800
(e) Pledged bank deposits (e) HLMETLERK

The bank deposits pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings carry interest rates which range from 0.01%
to 3.5% (2010: 1.91%).

Tomson Group Limited %} i 4 B A B2 v
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

30. AR

Number of shares Amount
JB B % H 2%
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g-—k  -3-%F SR 2%
HK$’000 HK$000
T#x T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each B 0.50M T2
4 Mt
Authorised iy
— Balance as at Ist January and -m=A—HLE+ZA
31st December =t—HZ#% 2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid i RCAR
— Balance as at st January ——H—HZ &8 1,391,579,496  1,347,537,988 695,790 673,769
— Exercise of share options — 17 f I 7,550,000 - 3,775 -
— Scrip dividend (Note 1) —DIRRE (M) 17,230,311 47,305,508 8,615 23,653
— Shares repurchased and cancelled — B [0 i % 8 R Ay
(Note 2) (Htit2) - (3,264,000) - (1,632)
— Balance as at 31st December -R+ZH=Z+—HZ
el 1,416,359,807  1,391,579,496 708,180 695,790

Notes:

1. On 29th June, 2010, 47,305,508 new shares of the Company
were allotted and issued at HK$2.91 per share to the

shareholders, who elected to receive shares in lieu of cash for the

special dividend for the year end 31st December, 2009. These

shares rank pari passu in all respects with the shares then in issue.

On 29th June, 2011, 17,230,311 new shares of the Company
were allotted and issued at HK$2.848 per share to the

shareholders, who elected to receive shares in lieu of cash for the

final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2010. These

shares rank pari passu in all respects with the shares then in issue.

Wit

A TEFAEN A AN A
HEPE DL RACE I R BT
FEH A=+ —HIEFEEZERRL
i B e 2.9 196 T it 3% T ¥51747,305,508
JBEAS A E T B Ay o W% 45 B0y B RF 4%
AT 0 e 1 = A R) 45 HE 2 o

WoE——FNHA T ILA > AN H
A DR AR R R B E %
—FEF+ZA=ZFT—HILEEZE
W B > 1 5 28487 T it 8 M 1T
17,230,311 A2 A1 Ly » 5% 55 1 1%
B W BB AT 10 I 0% = A TF) A £ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. HQZIK (4
Notes: (Continued) Bt (A
2. For the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Company 2. WE_F—-FF+_HA=1+—HIF
repurchased a total of 3,264,000 of its own shares on the Stock JE o A B DL 2,977 JC 23,061
Exchange at a price of HK$2.97 to HK$3.06 per share, for a total TG A R 7 T 52 T I 1 343,264,000 %
consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$9,910,000. AL E) Ay > BRARE R R B ST A
The repurchased shares were cancelled and an amount equivalent 9,910,000 7T i [l 14 11 f3 . 51 85 A
to the nominal value of these shares of HK$1,632,000 was S 7 R A IR A SR HTE 2 1,632,000 7T
transferred from share capital to the capital redemption reserve. AR A8 I AR A A T I AR
The premium paid on the repurchased shares was charged against ST I 1o I 3 2 i A ) 9 B 93 v 8
the share premium. B o
Aggregate
Number of ordinary Price per share consideration
shares of HK$0.50 each Highest Lowest paid
M A
1050 75 2
Date of purchase [LYNEE:! 83 £ B i A A ERE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$000
ET HT THT
December 2010 —E-RET A 3,264,000 3.06 2.97 9,910
31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 31. JBchE AL 22 B
TRANSACTIONS
A share option scheme was adopted by the Company AAFRMRE -FF_HFHA _+HH
pursuant to a resolution passed on 29th May, 2002 (the A Y Tk R SR A TE I RE R A
“Scheme”). The Scheme was set up for the primary purpose (TR RERE & 1) o 3% 7 i IORE 5T 31 1Y
to provide incentives or rewards to selected persons for their FTEAMEAMGEE N LHAL
contribution to the Group or any entity in which the Group B A B ] A AT R HE 2 AT )
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject to ([T BCE g |) 2 BRAE ) sl 4
earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by H o il A A I A RO K| PR R
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), the BIESAANFESRR ([EHH]) I
Scheme shall be valid and effective till 28th May, 2012. After AR B > R S E A R
the expiry of such valid period, no further options will be EoF-"FAAZHAHIL R
offered or granted but in all other respects the provisions of RO T T 1% S B TR AT R B T
the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect. JBCHE - Fi JOHE & 30 10 0 R TE 4% 5 T
SN A 4 A R
Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to (i) HRPE W e St &> B /T ] DL A
any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or PR R () A SR B AT R B A
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested ] BT AR i £ B M 2 AT AT R B
Entity, including any executive director of any member of 8 B A a2k B ) > B 45 A 4

AR AT 8 B 2> R BT o i 3 i 2 AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

the Group or any Invested Entity; or (ii) any non-executive
director (including independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii)
any adviser, consultant, customer and supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group; or (iv)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 108,474,911 shares, being 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Scheme, unless shareholders’ approval of
the Company has been obtained. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each participant
or grantee (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of
options in excess of the Individual Limit must be subject
to shareholders” approval in general meeting with such

participant and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercised at any time during
a period as the Board may determine which shall not be
more than 10 years commencing from the date of grant of
option. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
under the Scheme. The subscription price per share of the
Company in respect of any option granted under the Scheme

shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion

31, JBOHE A 36 5 (o

] AT 3 F 5 8K (i) 25 5 AT ] % B A
A AT AT BT B A 2 AT AT JE AT
H (OB IEMATES) s K Gi)fE
o] i 3¢ w3 A AR A o B K 2 R
A~ R~ %P R AL UL LB A
) BT ] BT £ B A B At B ) SRR
ZALRER 5 5 (iv) A< 2 B AT AT B B A A
SRAT AR Jr 43 M 2 AT o] R R B AR
A& AT o] 5 B 2 7 ST o] BT 5% 1 A
BATAEAT R 2 2 AL R A -

W FF 8 A N AR 2 HE o o AR R R
JRE 51 81 T 3% th 2 B RE T 8 AT 2
Ay A A B v PR RE AR BOK AT R
108,474,911 % » B A 24 &) 74 % 1 %
MERERT B H 2 B8 AT A s
10% ° B 24 2 B3 iR IR ANTE B 2 %
o I R R H R AT AT A >
BB 2 IR (BRI &
W AR AT ) T AT 8 IRE I AT S
AT Z AR A A HB AR R
o R RE R H 2 AN R B AT IR B
H2Z1% (TMEF EBRT) o 2 8 2%
FEAT 4% 0 W Bl b B 2 > Rl
JH 48 B AR AE B ROK & HEHE S T A B
S HH K HBS N LYHEES Lk
P HE -

FRAZ N IR R AZ WA e 2 O 28 H
A B A O TR NI A ] S AT
15 7T - 15 o JE AR B e 2 AU ek
TE AN AT 3R [ o i FS M T 7 2 2 ) e
SE 1) 393 FH] A0 B R AT 08 > % 300 [ AN A%
A5 B M 0D R R - AF e AR
PRI BRE R & BRI R 5 A R E I
R AT I8 0 e HEE 452 e ey T R 35 4h
SNf7 48 5% A7 1 e HEAT (5 2 i A0 AR AT 1Y
H J6 R S o AR 45 I A HEE R ) B 42 4 9
AT fo] S Je HE T 5 0 AR O ] A A4 B
0 HH B o B R A M R O M e R
EARERU T =82 R H K
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

31. BeHE AN R Yy ()

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

shall determine, save that such price will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer of the option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer.

Under the Scheme, 52,800,000 shares of the Company were
issued upon exercise of share options in 2003, 2005, 2008,
2009 and 2011. During the year 2011, an option which had
been granted to an employee of the Group to subscribe for
2,500,000 shares of the Company lapsed upon the expiry
of a period of one month following his departure from the
Group. Therefore, the maximum number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme as at 31st December, 2011
was 55,674,911, representing approximately 3.93% of the

Company’s existing issued share capital at the end of the

MRS R (WEABER) B
Jt A H R AE 2 0 50 B4 2 Wi 5 (i)
P R H R AR 2 B A
Bt 58 T A H 08 3R T 3 B 3 2 - H ik
B 5 K i) A3 T W IR HE 5 H 9 Ay
T8 {H °

AR 5% W F HEE 5t ) > A % 7]52,800,000 8%
e e T T =4 DR AR
FENF BRI R T ——4F
A7 01 1 P REAR B AT o I . — — 4R 4F
EoERTAAR —#RAEREARA
712,500,000 % f% 173 2 B B HE i 1 e AT
18— 22 1 P i Sk o PRI
R4 B R RESH 8> A = F—— 4
H=+—H a8 47 1 0 8 H &
2% 555,674,911 > RIAR 28 =] #4340

KA BT RAZ3.93% o

reporting period.

TRMBEBALNFEF LB AEARFE

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options held by Directors and employees during the Fe A B0 1 B S ) o
year.
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise price Ist January Lapsed Exercised ~ 31st December
per share 2011 during 2011 during 2011 2011
BEF——d BEF——4
—~H—H I & SR FTAZH
Date of grant Bl 1 BIRAT B i A AT Bl RH it i A AT B
HKS$
#
24th July, 2006 SEENFLAZTINH
~ Directors ~EF 2.155 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) -
— Employees B8 2.155 6,050,000 (2,500,000) (3,550,000) =
13th November, 2007 “EELEF—A+=H
~ Directors —EF 3.644 27,300,000 - - 27,300,000
37,350,000 (2,500,000) (7,550,000) 27,300,000
Exercisable at the end of the year LR AR AT B 27,300,000
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year

ended 31st December, 2011, the weighted average share price
at the dates of exercise was HK$3.127.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options held by Directors and employees during prior

year.

31. BeHE AT R Yy (4

mewzE " F——H£+_HA=1+—8H
IE4E B AT 2 W e ME T & > AT H
2 RS- Y A A 3.127 W5 G o

TR R AN R E KR B AR AR
JEE R A ) S M A )

Outstanding at

Outstanding at

Exercise price Ist January Lapsed Exercised  31st December
per share 2010 during 2010 during 2010 2010
RoE—-%F REF-FF
—A—H  ZE-%F “Z-FH F+7A=Zt-H
Date of grant WA AT B 1 W % A7 R (g:d 1 A7
HKS$
W
24¢h July, 2006 CERFAELA A
- Directors —#E 2.155 4,000,000 S = 4,000,000
— Employees -8 2.155 6,050,000 = = 6,050,000
13th November, 2007 “EFLEF-ATEH
- Directors —H#HH 3,644 27,300,000 = = 27,300,000
37,350,000 = = 37,350,000
Exercisable at the end of the year AR AEARAT 37,350,000
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

32. BORROWINGS 32. fE3k
The Group
7 5 1
2011 2010
¥ _FT-FF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T# 7 T T
Short-term bank loans, secured faﬁﬂﬁﬁk B AR 812,761 =
Current portion of long-term bank loans, R AT Sz A 2
secured ﬁ%&#ﬁ 311,033 129,717
Total short-term bank loans LA SRAT B AR 1,123,794 129,717
Long-term bank loans, secured SR AT R A AL 2,221,789 1,923,349
3,345,583 2,053,066
Carrying amount repayable: R R 2 R T -
On demand or within one year JE B SR B — 4 R 1,123,794 129,717
More than one year, — A RL b AE AN A A AR
but not exceeding two years 382,622 294,811
More than two years but Y4 DL EAH S A T 4R
not more than five years 1,711,051 1,628,538
More than five years TR 128,116 =
3,345,583 2,053,066
The bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as A2 8] AR SR AT Bk IR T 2 O A A M
disclosed in Note 38. 2138 i 5% o
Bank loans were floating-rate borrowings of AT B R IO RS X%
HK$3,345,583,000 (2010: HK$2,053,066,000) which 3,345,583,0000 70 ( — & — T4
carried interest rates ranging from 2.191% to 7.872% (2010: 2,053,066,000% %) » FEFZAF2.191
5.31% to 5.96%) per annum. EE7872E (. E -4 :531HEZE
5.96)E) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

33. DEFERRED TAXATION

33. SEHEBLIH

Accelerated Revaluation Exchange
tax of difference Tax
depreciation  properties LAT recognition losses Others Total
ki Ak +i BEREH
BEHE  BEMM W R BEOEH b Hst
T#xL TH#x TH#L TH#xL TH#x T#L T
HK$’000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
The Group A
Balance as at Ist January, 2010 AT E R
—A—HZ#% (44,945) (2,110,182) 178,141 (47,754) - 8,138 (2,016,602)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated WARFE G EE
income statement for the year BEH (f03) (5,793) 108,946 (22,264) = 466 (1,247) 80,108
Exchange adjustments i 50, 5 (1,942) (314) - (1,814) - 102 (3,968)
Balance as at 31st December, 2010 REF—FAE
TZAZT—-HZER  (52,680) (2,001,550) 155,877 (49,568) 466 6,993 (1,940,462)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated ARG S A R £
income statement for the year B (0380) (5,687) 88,487 (18,575) - 17,446 (1,080) 80,591
Exchange adjustments e 5, 0 (2,787) (408) = (2,315) 22 142 (5,346)
Balance as at 31st December, 2011 i} % ——4F
FIRAET-H2ER (61,154 (1,913,471) 137,302 (51,883) 17,934 6,055  (1,865,217)
For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial R E BRI R S > & TIRAE
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets and BIHERERAMRE TS -UT A2
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of B T B 75 i 2% 1) A0 A A T 45 R 0 A
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2011 2010
e . M
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T# T T
Deferred tax assets 8 S BT A 3,526 3,054
Deferred tax liabilities A% S A A 15 (1,868,743) (1,943,516)
(1,865,217) (1,940,462)

At 31st December, 2011, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$657.4 million (2010: HK$379.0 million) available
for offset against future profits. In 2011, a deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$71,735,000 (2010:
HK$1,863,000) of such losses.

WoE——FE+ " H=+—H  AREM
A AV HEE B o 2l ik A 2 ok B B TEL S
1 £5657,400,000 o6 ( = F — F 4
379,000,000%5 76 ) ° it —FE ——4F > &
W% kR AY71,735,0008 00 (&
— 4L 1 1,863,0009 7T ) TR L R AT B
THEE -

N =
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Under the New Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. At 31st
December, 2011, the aggregate amount of distributable
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in respect of which
the Group has not provided for dividend withholding tax
amounted to approximately HK$3,216.76 million (2010:
HK$2,692.58 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2000, Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. (the
“Hotel Company”), a jointly controlled entity in which
the Group has a 50% interest, entered into a management
agreement for 20 years (the “Management Period”) with
Inter-Continental Hotels Corporation (the “Management
Company”). The Management Company agreed to pay not
exceeding US$6 million to the Hotel Company for hotel
renovation and system upgrading (the “Renovation Fund”).
During the Management Period, the Management Company
will receive a certain amount of management fee based on

income and profit of the Hotel Company.

The Group is a guarantor to indemnify the Management
Company up to 50% of the Renovation Fund paid, but not
exceeding US$3 million if the management agreement is
terminated by the Hotel Company within the Management
Period. At the end of the reporting period, the Renovation
Fund paid by the Management Company amounted to
US$6 million (2010: US$6 million). As the Management
Company is a world-class hotel management group and the
operating results of the Hotel Company has improved, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Hotel Company would
be unlikely to terminate the management agreement within
the Management Period. Accordingly, it would be unlikely
for the Group to suffer any material financial loss as a result

of giving the indemnity.
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33.

34.

WERERLE ()

HRPEHTBLEE - o B B B A Rl — R\
E— H— H R BT IR M ]S A
BB R T ——F T+ A =+—
H > A 48 [ o B B J 2 W) 2 AT 20 TR 4
A E43,216,760,00086 7T ( T —F
4 12,692,580,000% 75 ) - A 4E H 1 K
B B 2 0 BB 1 A o

g2k £

#*???Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%%ﬁ
ZEEAAE R HRILE E RS AR
2w (T G 28 A1) B2 P v ik 45 30
] (TERA T ) #7570 — I8 A #1204
(TEHWIM ) 2 & M- B HA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

35. COMMITMENTS 35. 7R if
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the TR AREE Y FEEA N H
following material capital and other commitments: AT
2011 2010
S SOV RNEY S
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# 7 R
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS YA TR
Commitments in relation to expenditure A BB R 3
on properties under development: 3z A
Contracted but not provided for C "I A R A3 46 178,683 35,107
Commitments in relation to expenditure AR 81T
on film distribution rights: 3 2 R
Authorised but not contracted for 2R R ET 4 5,490 =
Contracted but not provided for C "I A H R $5 46 9,802 -
OTHER COMMITMENTS J A 75 35
Operating lease arrangements REmELd
i)  The Group as lessee ) ABEEAERRALA
At the end of the reporting period, TR R > R W]
the Group had outstanding MBI E A%
commitments under non-cancellable BA AT 514 A E)
operating leases which fall due: W 2 R
— within one year ——4FRN 9,964 10,739
— in the second to fifth year inclusive — 9 R
(BLAEE R AF) 12,214 21,500
— over five years —HEMUE 3,525 3,849
25,703 36,088

Annual Report 2011 4EE4EH 140



141

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

35. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

i)

ii)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals and annual
fees for use of land and properties payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties and land.
The significant operating leases for rental of properties
are negotiated for an average term of three years. The
operating leases for annual fees for use of land are based

on lease terms of the land which are over five years.
The Group as lessor

The properties held have committed tenants from the

majority of two years up to the maximum of nine years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future

35. 7R¥E

i)

i)

AL A By AR RN (A7)

K8 FH B BRIE T 98 A 4 Tl H
THAZY) R LA 2 e
T AR BE - % Wy S 0 R RE AR <
Y 26 2 BRI BT 1
TE Jh = AR o B AR SN L 8
Mg 2 KB 5 B AR -
HuFH 9

AL ARy ALA

it F ) 36 2 RN 2 7K e AL R
ZRWAE R/ ILF -

TP 4 R > AR R A 4 1) B R A
NPl & %> R NZHR T 514

minimum lease payments which fall due: BRI Z B AR T -
2011 2010
S SNV WY
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x Tt
— within one year ——4R 119,222 83,456

— in the second to fifth year inclusive — B ERERE

(BEHRWF) 77,169 67,050
— over five years — AL E 12,347 15,753
208,738 166,259
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at the specified

rate under the scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to
the consolidated income statement represent contributions
paid and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified

in the rules of the scheme.

The employees in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain
percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

36. 3B 4 Al it 5

AEER ZFFTE T ARE G
P 20 R < R W ) 2 B —
Y AR ([@AEE]) fh# - @ E st
B EEEAERZ EEDTHITA
A LA FE 7 Kl — 57 f RE N
AR R B < w R R E 2 A B 3
A AT wH B RT B A9 R A

T e M TR R A B 2 A o A < o
M 2 BB 5 A SR T A BRI RT
Z RO REMNFEE Mk

o B A B T A8 [ R 2
Z B E ORI AR A R 3 22 BE
H o ARUERTEHRA - SR B A R
R & 2 8 T 1 20 LAk i i A
A5 F L IR AR AR A w2 A AR
P H AT B Ko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

37. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related and connected parties:

(a) 1In 2008, the Company had entered into an agreement
covering the period from 30th June, 2008 up to 31st
July, 2011, with Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”),
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Company agreed to provide
administrative services and office premises to RHL and
its subsidiaries, in return, RHL is required to share
an attributable portion of the administrative cost of
the Company, for a monthly fee of HK$230,000. The
Company and RHL entered into a new agreement
dated 28th July, 2011 with revised administrative
cost of HK$320,000 per month for the period from
Ist August, 2011 to 31st July, 2014. During the
year ended 31st December, 2011, the administrative
cost of the Company shared by RHL amounted to
HK$3,210,000 (2010: HK$2,760,000). As at 31st
December, 2011 and 31st December, 2010, no
outstanding balance was owed by RHL.

The above transaction constitutes a connected
transaction but is exempted from disclosure and

approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

37. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 37. %@Ai&%@ﬁi%
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#5)

(b) On 5th August, 2011, Shanghai Tomson Pudong (b) R —-FE——HENAHH > LBEH

Real Estate Development Co., Limited (“Pudong
Real Estate”), which is an indirect 70% owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an asset
swap agreement (the “Asset Swap Agreement”) with
Shanghai Pudong Land Development (Holding) Corp.
(“SPLD”). Under the Asset Swap Agreement, Pudong
Real Estate agreed to exchange a plot of land with
a site area of approximately 17,531.7 square meters
plus cash consideration of approximately RMB17.45
million against a plot of land held by SPLD with a
site area of approximately 18,818.1 square meters at a

consideration of approximately RMB255.26 million.

An announcement dated 5th August, 2011 in respect of
the Asset Swap Agreement was made by the Company
accordingly. Details of the transaction were disclosed
in the circular to shareholders dated 25th August,
2011. The Asset Swap Agreement was approved by the
shareholders in an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 14th September, 2011. As at 31st
December, 2011, all of the consideration of RMB17.45

million was paid.

SPLD, being a substantial shareholder of Pudong Real
Estate, was a connected person to the Company and
the transaction constituted a connected transaction for

the Company under the Listing Rules.

FeL YA R J 8 B B A BR A ) (T3
WEHE]) (HAARN A M
HEH 70% M 15 2 Bt g A F)) B |
T TR R b b R R (B A A
(TIOR8 ]) 5750 B 2 B 1 ok
(TgEaEkm®]) - BEEER
otk > T RS b ) 7 DA g
MR #917,531.7°F 5 K Z i 3 5
B4 AR E 49 N R 17,450,000
G R BUR R T8 A R 2 i
M RE4718,818.1°F-J5 K 2 Hidh > f{
18 #) 7 N K %255,260,0007C °

ARAFRTIEAEE T ——
FENAHBEREE BRI &
NS R R K8 9 =
E——FENA-ZTHABBREREZ
LKA - B BT R
i E——4FEJUA U A T2
AR ) B AR IR € b o o R
—EF—-—F+_H=+—H-E
TAT A AE AN R ¥17,450,000
TTo

T R 5 AR i R s 2
TR B AN R 2 B+ T
R CEmRAD > #2385 MK
ARTF 2B S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

37. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(C) As at 31st December, 2011, included in the
consolidated financial statements under trade and
other payables and accruals, was an amount of
HK$4,350,000 (2010: HK$1,500,000) due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.
The amount is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed

repayment terms.

(d) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors during the year was as

37. BN L B B TG 58 B

(4F)

(c)

d

W_FE——FE+H=+—H>
LA PSR RINE 5 B HoAth FE AT
FIE S TR AR R TER AL R A A
s F) — W] B 2\ JE O R
Z #JH4,350,000% 0 (=& —F
4F 11,500,000 90 ) © 5% 4 FH L HE
HEAT ~ Ho B R JE [ 2 9 AR o

23 8:5: YN T ko

FNZEEHMAT

follows:
2011 2010
e
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T#7x F#TT
Short-term benefits K 301 4 Al 20,233 16,427
Post-employment benefits B ARAE F 48 41
20,281 16,468

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee or the Board (or under the
authorisation of the sharecholders of the Company
as the case may be) by reference to market terms,

individual responsibilities and performance.

The balances due from associates and a jointly controlled
entity at the end of the reporting period are set out in Notes

25 and 26, respectively.
The above transactions were conducted in accordance with

terms mutually agreed between the Group and the respective

related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings of HK$3,345.58

million (2010: HK$2,053.07 million):

38. ¥tz ik

WA TR (E 2 EE Ot R A4
] i 5% 55 3,345,580,000% 8 ( & —

E4FE 1 2,053,070,000% 0 ) MEHE P

2011 2010

Rk BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#x T BT

Investment properties REWE 5,297,457 5,379,481
Leasehold land and buildings FHE o M p 398,562 63,766
Properties under development R 2,632,803 =
Properties held for sale GR-E/ES 477,176 449,129
Investments held for trading FERE 96,835 =
Bank deposits AT 869,252 47,583
9,772,085 5,939,959
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

39. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 39. AN 2 B E R
COMPANY
The financial information of the Company as at 31st WoE——FEt+H=+—H AN
December, 2011 is as follows: " BB ERmT
2011 2010
S SNV WY
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Mt it T#x T i# T
Non-Current Assets I o e
Investment in subsidiaries B} 2 2> w1 % & 637,404 637,404
Amounts due from subsidiaries B S o i 2 W) 3K IR 2,597,635 1,904,216
Available-for-sale investments At E R E 315 315
3,235,354 2,541,935
Current Assets it B
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR S o i A ) 3K IE 530,631 1,757,678
Other receivables and prepayments Jth B it 5K 3H Az T8 A+ 3 IH 24,278 17,684
Cash and bank balances Bl S ERAT &5 86,195 95,690
641,104 1,871,052
Current Liabilities b RER
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A5 B JB§ 2 ] Z A 424,025 1,123,837
Other payables Al R A 3 3,503 4,189
427,528 1,128,026
Net Current Assets it B A 213,576 743,026
Total Assets Less 0% 5 W B B4R
Current Liabilities 3,448,930 3,284,961
Capital and Reserves A B bkt 1
Share capital A 30 708,180 695,790
Share premium and reserves 5 A7 s A8 B At A 40 2,740,750 2,589,171
Equity attributable A7 ) e R A HE A
to shareholders of the Company 3,448,930 3,284,961
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

40. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND 40. A2 ) By ik 1 e Ak i
RESERVES
Capital Share
Share  redemption option  Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
Bedrai il EARWIM GG WBHERS  SOAES BB A it
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$°000 HKS$000
T#7 T#7 T#7 T#7 T#7 T#7x
THE COMPANY AR
Balance at st January, 2010 RoF—-F4
—H—HZ&H% 2,010,853 14,058 34,391 327,645 316510 2,703,457
Loss and total comprehensive AF M 1 2 T
expense for the year ok - - - = (38,067) (38,067)
Repurchase of shares [ B P A7 (8,307) 1,632 - - (1,632) (8,307)
Issue of shares under scrip MR AR AL B 5B
dividend scheme BT 114,006 - - - - 114,006
Dividend paid for 2009 R = EENERE (23,653) = = = (158,265) (181,918)
Balance at Ist January, 2011 RoF——fF
—H—HZ&#% 2,092,899 15,690 34,391 327,645 118,546 2,589,171
Profit and total comprehensive A B i R R 2 T I AR
income for the year k] - - - - 182,467 182,467
Exercise of share options A 1 1 A 17,167 s (4,672) s = 12,495
Share options lapsed BRI - - (1,398) - 1,398 -
Issue of shares under scrip TR LA A5t 3
dividend scheme BT 40,457 - - - - 40,457
Dividend paid for 2010 A =R —FERE (8,615) - - - (75,225) (83,840)
Balance at 31st December, 2011 RoF— A
+ZAZ+—HZ
Btk 2,141,908 15,690 28,321 327,645 227,186 2,740,750
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 41. FBEIEB LR Y

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group has
issued 17,230,311 new shares (2010: 47,305,508 new shares)
as scrip dividend of HK$49,072,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 (HK$137,659,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2009) as set out in Notes 15 and 30.

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, certain deposits
paid for land used rights of the Group of HK$1,484,387,000
(2010: Nil) were transferred to properties under development

as set out in Note 22.

W E —EFE——F T H=+—H1
EE S AL T 717,230,311 K8
i (& —F 4 47,305,508 % # i)
REBZE_F—-FF+_H=1+—
H Ik 4F BE 2 % 55.49,072,000% o6 (#%
EOEBENEFT _H=Z+—HILFEE
£4137,659,000%5 JG) (% 7 B 5E15 &
30) °

wEE - —-—4%+_H=+—H
I REBE A TEA L
FAHE ¥% 4:1,484,387,0007 00 (& —
TAE ) BEA B R (RO B 5E
22) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y B i M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

42. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 42,
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29th October, 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement to subscribe for 70% issued share capital of MHK
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, for a cash consideration of HK$210,000,000. MHK
Limited is principally engaged in property development and

the sole asset held is a piece of land in Macau.

325 308 BB — I ) 2 ) o
Yk ¢ e

W_E—-FFE+A T IHE K
LB T — ek LB e RE
210,000,000% JG 38 BEMHK Limited
(7 35 8 i 4 BE S 52 M RS2 2 A A
70%E B 17 B A - MHK Limited & %2
R EFREY  MFAZHE—]
FE Ay LR Y 2 — 1+ b o

HK$'000

T i# T

Property under development Ry S 350,000
Cash and bank balances B4 T SRAT &5 iR 32
Deposit and prepayments i KA K 591
Other payables T Ath JE AT IR 3K (50,623)
Net assets FEE 300,000
Non-controlling interest IE FE B 1 HRORE 4 (90,000)
Net assets acquired ISt % & E AR 210,000
Purchase consideration settled in cash DIBR & 458 2 i B A (210,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired WA B B 4 K SR AT & R 32
Net cash outflow on acquisition WA B 3 4 W S VR AR (209,968)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak o W5 0 o Bk ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43. FHEME A 6] > BB A &%
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES E84
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, N ——4FEt+-H=1+—H
2011 2 1B 24
Proportion of
Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR OB AR A
sk 3 WA CHAT R A
W 2 44 BERH GEMEEAR GEMEARTCREG R RERH
Directly  Indirectly
i IRl &
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Investment holding
SRR LR 100 78 fELER
Cosmos Success Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
B o ¢ A PR ) Eib 10,000 7 fErER
Grand View Property Management PRC US$500,000 - 100 Property management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Dafeng Property
Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.)
(Note (1))
PRPEER (L) ARA B 500,000 TG WERER
(HI G 2 K SE 2 ( 1t )
HIRAF) (W)
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
fH 25 R A R 7 ik 2T BETER
Garland Limited Hong Kong HKS$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
FIAHRAFE i 10,000 7T B
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
AR RA A ik 2T BRI
Humphreys Estate Hong Kong HKS$200 - 100 Securities trading
(Strawberry Houses) Limited & 2009 7T HHEEH
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B 5 Y B i M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43. FEME A 6] > BB A6 &%
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES EBLE @)
(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, N E—-—4E+_H=+—H
2011 (Continued) ZLEEWE AT 47)
Proportion of
Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BReHs AR R4
ik W B W BB A CHATRA
W2 4 REWN GEMEEA M EARTRREG LR EERH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi Il £
% %
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Property holding
B AR ) ik 27 ESEE
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Inactive
BRARAR i 1T LiE
Jentime Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Inactive
R AT R 2% ] ik 2T T
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Il A P HiE 2T BE R
Leway Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Inactive
HERRAT ik 2T T
Maxi Charm Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
KRBT E 170 B
MHK Limited British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 70 Property development
S I8 R 30,000 75 RS
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
AEARAR FiE 2T BE R
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$40,200,000 - 100 Investment holding
£d 7 il 40,200,000 76 fErER
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Ak o W5 0 o Bk ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —ZF——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,
2011 (Continued)

43, LEW)BA ) BB A6 K&

HBLE w)

W_F——4F+-H=1+—H
ZEEWE AW 41)

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BReHs AR R4
ik W B BB A CHATRA
W2 4 REWN GEMEEA M EARTRREG LR EERH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi Il &
% %
Owina Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
Bk A R ) ik 27 BELER
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu PRC US$18,500,000 - 95 Property development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(Note (2))
LEBEEREREREARAT  HHE 18,500,000 & RS
(Wite)
Shanghai Tomson Outer PRC US$15,000,000 - 100 Property development
Gaogiao Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
5 A R A R A R i 15,000,000 & UES
(Hit1))
Shanghai Tomson Plastic PRC 589,580,000 - 58  Manufacturing of PVC pipes
Industry Co., Ltd.
(Note (2))
Fi R BB RARAA i 9,580,000 7 RERE
(Wit2)
Shanghai Tomson Pudong PRC US$46,000,000 - 70 Property development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(Note (2))
EnERREREREARAD 46,000,000 & RS
(Wite)
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B 5 Y B i M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43. FEME A 6] > BB A6 &%
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES EBLE @)
(Continued)
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, N _F——4F+_"H=1+—8H
2011 (Continued) Z VERE A (a)

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BReHs AR R4
ik W B BB A CHATRA
W2 4 REWN GEMEEA M EARTRREG LR EERH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi Il &
% %
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate PRC US$100,000,000 - 100 Property development
Investment & Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
i R BB PR e 100,000,000 7t UES 4
(Witw)
Tianjin Jinwan Real Estate PRC RMB2,442,500,000 - 75 Property development
Development Co., Limited
(Note (2))
KB B B R R A e AR H2,442,500,0007C UES 4
(Wit2)
Tianjin Tomson Development Co., PRC RMB1,500,000,000 S 100 Investment holding
Limited (Nore (1))
RBmERSARAE (W) — HE A B 1,500,000,0007 AL
Toben Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment
AR AR i 2B B S
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
PrEL () A RA ik 2T BE R
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
KRELHE 1%t BE R
Tomson Empire View Co. Limited British Virgin Islands US$65,010,000 - 100 Investment holding
i B A TP AT PR 2 ) £d 1 aqid 65,010,000 7t B LR
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —F——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,
2011 (Continued)

43. LEW)BA ) BB A6 Rk

HBLE w)

W_F——4F+_-H=1+—H
Z EEWE AW 41)

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BReHs LYk ]
ik W B Wl BB A CHATRA
W2 4 REWN AR A RN R  REEH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi Il &
% %

Tomson Financial Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding

Vi b B AR R ) ik 10,0007 75 fELER

Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited PRC US$40,000,000 = 100 Golf course and club operation,

(Note (1)) and property development

BEEBX (LE) AR B 40,000,000% 7 FWKHRSG R GRS

(HEE)) DYSIE S
Tomson Group Garland (Shanghai) PRC US$16,000,000 - 100 Property development
Housing & Estate Ltd. (Note (1))
VR (L) 5 E i 16,000,000 ¢ B T
HIRRA (W)

Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee services to
the Group and investment
holding

Gl (LA AR A i 203 7T P S T £ 8 AN R

Tomson Group (Nominees) Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee services to

No. 2 Limited the Group
HEEEF " (REAN)ARAF i 203 7C R S T 4R AN MRS
Tomson Haijing Garden PRC US$58,200,000 - 100 Property development
(Shanghai Pudong New Area)
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
o B AL IR (o RO ) H 58,200,0005% TG UES 4

BHWRAF (Bita))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y B R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,
2011 (Continued)

43. LEWIBA A BB A6 K
HEBEE @)

W_F——4F+-H=1+—H
Z EEWE AW 41)

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BReHs AR A
ik W B Wl BB A CHATRA
W24 4 REWN AW A EMEARPIREA R RERH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi Il £
% %
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding and
Company Limited investment in concert
business
6 e U R 4 R i 2T BB B B B
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Film distribution
Distribution Limited
i BB PRI B AT A R i LT F2iESh
Tomson International Trade Building PRC US$16,800,000 - 100 Property development
(Shanghai) Co., Led. (Note (1))
WEBEEAE (L) ARAH i 16,800,000 7 UES 4
(Hit))
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 - Investment holding
Wb BB A R A i 3T BRI
TPR Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing secretarial services
and investment holding
ik 10,0004 76 BRI R MBS Tt e
Walsland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
EZBARAHE Eik 10,000 7 fRLER
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
FRICA R ] ik 27 BRI

Tomson Group Limited ¥5FL4EM% BA v



43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —F——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,
2011 (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding

at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

Note: For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their classification

of establishment is as follows:

(1) wholly foreign owned enterprise

(2) sino-foreign equity joint venture

Principal associates as at 31st December, 2011

43. LEW)BA ) BB A6 Rk

TRAR @)

W_F——4F+_-H=1+—H
Z EEWE AW 41)

5 BA JB 2 R AR HBSCAR P A AT IR ]
B AT ] i oA MR 2 AR B O

Wi < RS G B 2 7 R 4
=2
(1) ShEmE R
2 WIEERE

RoF -4+ ZA=t—H
ZEEBE AW

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
Form of Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
business incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MROEL AR HAH
ik I B Wl BB A CHATBA
LV EEL FHARERX KRN dEMEEA GEMEARRBAER LR EERH
Directly  Indirectly
% B3
% %
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HKS$45,000 - 26.7  Investment holding
ERARAR A M ar i 45,0004 7T BETE
Yankie Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HKS$2 - 50 Investment holding
BRARA A ALY i 2T BEER
LT & Partners Inc. Incorporated British Virgin US$9,000,000 - 33 Investment holding
Islands
i i Ed 1 el 9,000,000 75 fErER
China Boom Enterprises Incorporated British Virgin US$1,280,000 - 44 Tnvestment holding
Limited Islands
BEREHRAA AL PR E LR 1,280,000 7t fR LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y B R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #&Z% —F——4F+ " H =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43. 33%5{1)% NG|~ BB NG R

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal associates as at 31st December, 2011

b=

BAE @)

i eV ES

(Continued) 2%%%%’4\\5—1 (#E)
Proportion of
Paid up issued share capital/
Form of Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
business incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRoHEs LYk ]
ik i B Wl BB A CHAT R A
Lk RHHEMER  EBAN dEMEE A EMEARTCREAR R REEH
Directly  Indirectly
H# Il &
% %
Tomson Entertainment Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 - 45 Investment in film,
Co. Limited television and

3 B A PR sk M iz aE 25,000,000% £

Abundance Tomson Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2
Management Limited

YEGEEREAARAR M il 2T

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries and associates would be of
excessive length and therefore the above list contains only
the particulars of those subsidiaries and associates which

significantly affect the results or assets of the Group.
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- 50 Investment holding
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak W05 0 o Bk ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #% —F——4F+ " =+—HIL4FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Jointly controlled entities as at 31st
December, 2011

43. LEW)BA ) BB A6 Rk

TRAER

(#)

)/ S Y & Iy g £
ZHBAE

Percentage o

f

Form of Place of effective interest
Name of jointly business incorporation Paid up in registered capital
controlled entity structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
sk 3 e A QA HAH
RREXAR XBHEMEX  BBLM B ZEMBEA  GEREARTREG R R
Directly  Indirectly
Hi U3
% %
Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Sino-foreign PRC US$24,340,000 - 50  Hotel owning and

Hotel Co., Ltd. equity joint
venture
il 88 T BRI I THGELE  HE
HIRZA A

Tianjin Jinwan Property Co.,  Sino-foreign PRC
Limited equity joint
venture

REHEEEaRA A TIGEEE

24,340,000% 7T

RMB1,406,385,800

INEL
1,406,385,8007C

operation

A RS

51 Property development

E I
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Other Connected Transactions

JC i B 2 52 5)

In the ordinary course of business, current accounts have been TEH W EFRED s AEELNFBIRGRA
maintained between companies in the Group. At the end of the TEACRF o i i R - AR E AR A A
reporting period, the particulars and the aggregate balances of ml (BEAT) BT S AL "l 2 Je 2 B W A
the current accounts due (to) by the following non-wholly owned Al Z AR AR MR I 2 1% B &5 SR AR I T

subsidiaries of the Company to the remaining members of the

Group were as follows:

Percentage

shareholdings

attributable

to the Group
Name of subsidiary 7 44 P AN 2011 2010
B0 2 v 4 BT e %A R LR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#7 T T

Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 95% (210) (210)
v RO A BH R A B

Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry Co., Ltd. 58% 37 S
S BB A PR A

Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 70% (835,481) (798,344)
V35 B PR b BE A BR

Tianjin Jinwan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 75% - 41
KA = @ e A R A

MHK Limited 70% 15,150 33,300
These current accounts are unsecured, interest free and have no B AR HR PG I S S S R S [ R
fixed repayment terms except the amount of HK$719,316,000 T > MEREAS b i R RS E BH A
(2010: HK$687,252,000) due to Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real FR S F] #JE719,316,000% 6 ( —FE — 4
Estate Development Co., Limited which is interest bearing at 7% 687,252,000%% 7T ) BE 41 > 7% 55 FXE 472 4F Fl| &K
(2010: 7%) per annum. 7 ( ZF—FF 7)) FHE

Details of the connected transactions are set out in Note 37 to R 8 28 ) w1 R A S A A R B 5E37 -

these consolidated financial statements.
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FERYER

As at 31st December, 2011 B —F——F+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP ANEBIRFAEZYE
Investment Properties #EYE
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HE 24 4R T A%
i3] S B A% it T8 (P k) ik Z Mg
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 15,655 for Commercial 100%
part of the level I and the Lujiazui offices and
whole of level 3 to 5 of the Finance and podium;
commercial podium and 141 Trade Zone 7,594 for
car parking spaces of car parks

Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade

Zone, Pudong New Area,

Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
o AR L A B R Ve R W 2 L L3 YT % 100%
Ve % W 5 Bl 2 [ SR 371055 ¥ 5 i 15,655 F Ik 5
LR ONLE E Al RN 22- 190 B T f7,594°F 77 K
EEEalpa Y E RS Y
JAUALHER:A
The whole of level 1 to 3 Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,082 for Commercial 100%
of the commercial podium, Waigaogiao Free offices and
4/F., 8/F. to 12/F, 14/E, Trade Zone podium;
17/F. to 25/F. and part of 4,299 for
7/F. and 12A/E. of the car parks

office tower and 105 car
parking spaces of Tomson
International Trade Building,
No.1 Jilong Road
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,

Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
CiE YN R AR A TR I L BFERTS [ZE3 100%
S i 18 TR BRI A B 1 5% C3-001%; 1 B 36,082°F 45 K 5
Gl N Job e D e T EL(4,299°F 47 K

o KMt s 108 148
17H 2 25HE 2 g L7tk B AR Z 3
J105 18 E A
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Schedule of Principal Properties
ERPEHR

As at 31st December, 2011 P —F——4F+_"_H=+—H

>
PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ANEBRFEZWE »)
Investment Properties (Continued) BEYWE #)
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
144 A B i AEM
G B9 A Wit (P J5 oK) ik 2 HidE
Whole of level 1 to 4 of Lot 1/1, Medium term 11,903 for Commercial 95%
the commercial podium and 244 Street, offices and
136 car parking spaces of Zhangjiabangjiedao, podium;
Tomson Business Centre, Lujiazui Finance 5,054 for
158, 188, 228 Zhangyang and Trade Zone car parks

Road, Lujiazui Finance and
Trade Zone, Pudong New Area,

Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
LiE YN MR Ve % W6 5 T L 5 (R i BTELTEY [HES 95%
BEAEEMESE REBEHE 11,903°F 75 K 5
el sh158 - 188 - 2284 244 YN E T HL025,054°F 77 K
BERBETORERYS
CAE R SR R L AT
Tower B, Tomson Riviera, Lot No.1 Long term 35,423 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, 17 Jiefang,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Meiyuan Road

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

LIk NGB o i 1 T B 1 78 R 35,423 K 100%
e 5 W 4 L S 155 B
16 B 6 1 B 285

B — B

Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 109,359 Industrial 100%
Park, No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi 19 Jiefang,
Road, 27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaogiao
358 Futebei Road, Free Trade
Waigaoqiao Free Trade Zone, Zone

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

LIk YNGR | i A A R IR il i 109,359 T¥% 100%
A1 e A8 PR B 5 o 1 B 19887111 K14
381%383%% » HE A B 27 294 »
&AL 358
BEARELERE
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HEWER

As at 31st December, 2011 B —F——F+_"H=+—H
PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ANEBRFEZWE »)

Golf Course w5 R BRI

Approximate Gross

Floor Area Group’s
Description Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HE 2% A0 i AEH
il A Wi B (P4 oK) ik Pa £
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club Medium term Club Houses, driving range and An 18-hole golf 100%
No.1 Long Dong Avenue, maintenance room of 12,652 with course
Pudong New Area, site area of 952,154
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
L INIP i BT BT RREE S R 181 & i K Bk 100%
i T SRR R R 1% W F12,650F Kk
BB L R R R b % 1
F952,154°F 7 K

Annual Report 2011 4EBE4EH 162



Schedule of Principal Properties

FRYER

As at 31st December, 2011 P —F——4F+_"_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued)

Properties under development

AEEFHE ¥ )
R ¥

Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Lot Site Area Floor Area Group’s Stage of Date of
Description Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest Completion Completion
LR
MR A AT ARM T T R A itz
f B 3o B 9% (CFJ %) (CFJ %) ik ZHidi 56 9 B B 568 H
A piece of land at the Lot 7-2, 23,924 207,700 Residential and ~ 75% Construction work Mid 2015
junction of Jiefang North Heping District, commercial commenced in
Road and Chifeng Road, Tianjin August 2011
Heping District,
Tianjin,
People’s Republic of China
iz 7 i 2 A RAEA B KA AF 23,924 207,700 EERHR  75% BETER T ——F “F—LFF
TN [ A e 7-29E B AR L
AR 2 B A
Z— Wt
A piece of land at No. 22356 2,569 23,600 Luxury 70% The land is at the End of 2013
Travessa do Colégio No.7 folio 100, residential stage of piling and
e Calcada do Bom Parto Book B16K foundation works
No.2, Macao Special
Administrative Region of
the People’s Republic of China
i 1 3 A R IEAT R 5 5% 2,569 23,600 LT 70% BRSNS “E-ZER
R A A B B2 85 8 7455 I 22356 T B 17
TRAE R 25 2 — R L 1005 »
B 16K i
A piece of land near the B-2 and 192,280 135,000 Residential 100% The land will be Phase I
Junction of Lou Shan Road B-13-4 developed in phases. —end of 2014
and Long Dong Avenue Jingiao- Construction work
Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District Zhangjiang for Phase I will be
Pudong New Area, District commenced in
Shanghai, second half of 2012.
People’s Republic of China
A RIEAME FEHANE @B RIIE 192,280 135,000 e 100% FE LS EE B H
S — T I B A 0L B I B-24 1% J B —MHETR —F—-NFK
BERKERH 2~ L B-13-43 & MR % — T4
TR B IR -
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Schedule of Principal Properties
HRPER

As at 31st December, 2011 B —F——F+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ANEBRFEZWE »)

Properties held for sale 2 LE A

Approximate Gross

Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest

1BE 40 48t A
fid Ho Be i ik [EASPES) ik ZHidi

Part of 6/F. to 7/F,, 10/E, Lot 2-2-1 Lujiazui Medium term 3,039 Commercial 100%
11/F, 17/E. of Tomson Finance and Trade Zone
Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
LR INGEI N3 h BRWERE SR Lid] 3,039 [EES 100%
W2 W <5z L 00 [ R B 71098 22- 153 B
BE SRR EETE-
1088~ 114 B7HE2Z 34

Part of 5/E, 6/F, 15/E, Lot C3-001 Waigaoqiao Medium term 4,035 Commercial 100%
and 16/E. of Free Trade Zone
Tomson International
Trade Building,
No.1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
o A R L  RRT AR A TR I L 4,035 [LES 100%
B i 18 TR BRI A B 1 5% C3-001%; 1 B
0 b BP0 RMESHE ~ ot~ 15 ]
1648 2

Part of Towers A & C & Tower D, Lot No.1 Long-term 49,185 Residential 100%
Tomson Riviera, 17 Jiefang, Meiyuan Road
28 Huayuanshigiao Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
o A R SLA E RRT g R4 49,185 € 100%
Ve R W 5 B ) [ 17435195 4 B
TE R 16 Bk 2855
i b — i AR I CHEZ 3473 DA DR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FRYER

As at 31st December, 2011 P —F——4F+_"_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued)

AREERHZPE a)

165

Properties held for sale (Continued)

R LIEXE D

Approximate Gross

Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
1BE 40 48 A
i o B 0% it [EAR PRI ik 2t
Phases VI, VIII & IX Tomson Lot 23/10 Tong Le Cun, Long-term 1,741 Residential 100%
Golf Villas, 1 Long Dong Hua Mu Xiang
Avenue, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
G YN W3 fe A =2 1,741 fEE 100%
TR ARORE 1 98 s B e A R A F % £23/10
F5HARE LN
Part of Tomson Riviera Garden, Lot 3, 15 Jiefang, Long-term 2,750 Residential 70%
Lane 2255, Luoshan Road, Huamu Zhen,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
LiE YN MR T SR I & 2,750 i€ 70%
Bl 22557 o B ) RETE TR 2 R 53 ek Bt
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Zhangbang Cun Long-term 470 for residential; Residential 100%
167 car parking spaces of Jingiaozhen, 5,205 for car parks
Tomson Golf Garden, 1 Long Pudong New Area
Dong Avenue, (2 of North
District), Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
LiE YN MR T 3R I & RE470FH K i€ 100%
AR (dL2l) ERERBER47NE T8 {5,205°F 75 K
B E R R EBREEZ W
AR 16718 3 5L
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HEWER

As at 31st December, 2011 B —F——F+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY JOINTLY FBRLCERAEZUE
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Properties held for investment BhEREZ2YE
Approximate Gross
Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
40 A v ARAH
i 1 8 53 % Lt i B¢ (CF 5% ) ik 2 Hidi
InterContinental Lot 12 Zhangyang Road Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
Shanghai Pudong hotel, Commercial District
777 Zhangyang Road, Lujiazui
Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e A RGBSR e b Bt i 52,622 A 50%
Ve % W i I R B 777 T 2 129 B
i BT B R O
Properties held for development TR 2 W%
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Lot Site Area Floor Area Group’s Stage of Date of
Description Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest Completion Completion
BE#
Mol A RY A I ok A%EM fhistZ
i B CEk)  CEIX) & 2 gk 56 1 B Bt 565 H
A piece of land at Lot 48 Heping 11,591 159,000 Commercial 51% Construction works 2016
junction of Jiefang North District, Tianjin are scheduled for
Road and Chifeng Road, commencement in
Heping District, 3rd quarter of 2012
Tianjin,
People’s Republic of China
iz 7 3 A R RHF- i 11,591 159,000 ES 51% EE TR ZE-RE
TR AL B 4855 Bt I S
GRS 02— HZZHT
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T A5 W 5 Bt 2

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT A AR

Year Ended 31st December
BETZH=Z+—HIL4EE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
SEFEE CFEAE CFEAE CFRE SRk
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$°000

TiE T T#r  THi T

Gross proceeds from operations B AR 785,270 2,386,932 703,475 3,718,737 2,020,048
Profit before taxation R % Al i 3,646,058 1,105,368 3,190,846 2,410,113 717,552
Taxation BiA (1,060,842) (484,369)  (1,798,059)  (1,435,583) (638,137)
Profit for the year A B Y 2,585,216 620,999 1,392,787 974,530 79,415
Attributable to: JEAG R
Owners of the Company ARFAEG A A 2,588,314 451,986 1,387,406 860,018 15,210
Non-controlling interests T2 P R 4 (3,098) 169,013 5,381 114,512 64,205
2,585,216 620,999 1,392,787 974,530 79,415
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ,%ﬁﬁa‘i’%,‘ﬂ((ﬂjé
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
R+=ZH=Z+—H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

ZEREE ZETAE ZFTAE ZF-%H  ZF—F
HKS$000  HKS000  HK$000 — HKS000 —  HK$'000
THT T T T T

Fixed assets IHl 5E & 7E 6,136,451 6,498,921 5,925,124 6,216,950 6,921,343
Lease premium for land T EE A 502,057 82,080 249,420 72,489 69,642
Properties under development B E 34,732 S = = =
Film distribution rights BRI 4,612 - - - 5,741
Prepayment for film distribution rights ¥ BT A K - - - - 6,488
Goodwill i 2 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets TR A E & 2,027 873 2,090 3,054 3,526
Interests in associates and REBEAFRAEELEL

jointly controlled entities fit 4 217,648 234,311 192,016 1,057,456 1,097,151
Available-for-sale investments l A 151,807 97,860 132,632 137,745 107,320
Pledged bank deposits AR RATIE K - - - 47,583 54,624
Net current assets B 1,481,162 2,429,882 5,413,662 7,775,412 7,703,531

8,563,784 9,377,215 11,948,232 15,343,977 = 16,002,654

Equity attributable to owners of EN/NEIE SRR Z DN

the Company FE A HE 4 7,042,304 7,853,606 9,265,792 10,426,438 10,843,605
Non-controlling interests T2 P R 4 166,636 339,306 344,539 1,050,674 1,068,517
Total equity by £ 7,208,940 8,192,912 9,610,331 11,477,112 11,912,122
Borrowings GRS 363,054 192,809 319,209 1,923,349 2,221,789
Deferred tax liabilities IR IE B A f 991,790 991,494 2,018,692 1,943,516 1,868,743

8,563,784 9,377,215 11,948,232 15,343,977 16,002,654

167 Tomson Group Limited ¥5FL4EMH BA v



i

Tomson Group

Tomson Group Limited

yE \ =
& R B A TRA
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(RHAEHBFMRIZERADF)
Stock Code B {355 : 258



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Group Profile
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Profile of the Directors and Officers
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Other Connected Transactions
	Schedule of Principal Properties
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover

